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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of BRAC Bank Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of BRAC Bank Limited and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) as well as the separate financial statements of BRAC Bank Limited (the “Bank”), which comprise
the consolidated and separate -balance sheets as at 31 December 2022 and the consolidated and separate
profit and loss accounts, consolidated and separate statements of changes in equity and consolidated and
separate cash flow statements for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated and separate financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group and separate financial
statements of the Bank give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group and
the separate financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated and separate
financial performance and its consolidated and separate cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as explained in note 2 and other applicable laws
and regulations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group and the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
(BSEC) and Bangladesh Bank, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the IESBA Code and the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) Bye Laws. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

Description of key audit matters Our response to key audit matters

Measurement of provision for loans, advances and leases

The process for estimating the provision for loans, | We tested the design and operating effectiveness of
advances and leases portfolio associated with credit | key controls focusing on the following:
risk is significant and complex. o Credit appraisal, loan disbursement procedures,

S . monitoring and provisioning process;
For the individual analysis for large exposure, - '
o ) ) . | o Completeness of appropriate documentation
provisions calculation considers the estimates of i -
. . ) ) before disbursement of loans as well as
future business performance and the market value of I .
. - ) ) recording of loan balance;

collateral provided for credit transactions. .
e Alternate procedures applied by management to

For the collective analysis of exposure on portfolio assess new loan/renewal of existing loans where

basis, provision calculation and reporting are latest audited financial statements of the

borrower is not available;
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manually processed that deals with voluminous
databases, assumptions and estimates of complex
design and implementation.

At year end the Group reported total gross loans and
advances of BDT 412,085 million (2021: BDT
322,135 million) and provision for loans and
advances of BDT 15,387 million (2021: BDT
13,998 million).

[n addition, special general provision = COVID 19
has been also maintained as per BRPD circular no.
53 dated 22 December 2022 on the outstanding
balance from clients who have taken the deferral
facility due to COVID 19.

We have focused on the following significant
judgements and estimates which could give rise to
material misstatement or management bias:

o Completeness and timing of recognition of loss
events in accordance with criteria set out in
BRPD circular no 14, dated 23 September 2012
and BRPD circular no 03, dated 21 April 2019;
and

o For individually assessed provisions, the
measurement of the provision may be dependent
on the valuation of collateral, estimates of exit

values and the timing of cash flows.

Provision measurement is primarily dependent upon
key assumptions relating to probability of default,
ability to repossess collateral and recovery rates.

e Identification of loss events, including earl?
warning and default warning indicators; and

o Reviewed quarterly Classification of Loans
(CL).

Our substantive procedures in relation to the
for
comprised the following:

provision loans and advances portfolio
o Reviewed the adequacy of the general and

specific provisions in line with related
Bangladesh Bank guidelines;

o Assessed the methodologies on which the
provision amounts are based, recalculated the
provisions and tested the completeness and
accuracy of the underlying information;

e Evaluated the appropriateness and presentation
of disclosures against

standards and Bangladesh Bank guidelines.

relevant accounting

e Finally, compared the amount of provision
requirement as determined by Bangladesh Bank
inspection team to the actual amount of
provision maintained.

Due to long-term impact of COVID 19, flood
situation in north-eastern areas of Bangladesh and
prolonged conflict/war outside the country, many
borrowers were adversely impacted during the year.
Accordingly, Bangladesh Bank has given certain
flexibility from classification requirement for loans
vide issuing various circulars such as BRPD 14
dated 22 June 2022, and BRPD 51 dated 18
December 2022 whereby Banks are allowed to keep
a loan/customer as unclassified subject to the
payment of certain percent of quarterly instalment
due by 31 December 2022.

The Bank has calculated required provision as per
Bangladesh Bank letter DBI- 4/115/2023-384 dated
03 April 2023.

See note # 8 and 17.1 to the financial statements




Hoda Vasi
Chowdhury & Co

Risk

Our response to the risk

Interest income recognition

Recognition and measurement of interest income
involve complex IT environment as well as require
critical estimates and judgment. Since interest
income from loans and advances is one of the key
performance indicators of the Bank there is an
inherent risk of fraud and error in recognition of
interest income.

Moreover, as per Bangladesh Bank BRPD circular
no. 53 dated 22 December 2022, considering future
risk banks were allowed to recognize outstanding/
arrear interest income on loans where deferral
facilities were given upon considering potential risk
of future recovery and receiving certain percent of
quarterly instalment due by 31 December 2022.

Accordingly this has been considered as key audit
matter.

We tested the design and operating effectiveness of
key controls including automated control over
recognition and measurement of interest on loans
and advances.

For selected customers and loan files on sample
basis we have also performed substantive test of
details including recalculation and cut-of testing to
check accuracy of interest income.

Finally, we also conducted substantive analytical
procedures to assess reasonableness of interest
recognised during the year with reference to the
product wise outstanding loan balances.

However, due to the current uncertainty of the
overall economic situation, and in particular impacts
from major global events such as continuation of
COVID 19 related disruptions, Russia-Ukraine
conflict, volatility in fuel and commodity price,
strengthening of USD, etc., there is inherent risk that
the actual recovery of accrued interest income
especially from those clients receiving deferral
facility could be materially different than the actual
situation in future and a portion of interest accrued
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

See note # 27 to the financial statements

Risk

Our response to the risk

Adequacy of income tax provision and measurement of deferred tax assets

Calculation of income tax provision required
compliance with the Income Tax Ordinance 1984
including careful  consideration of various
temporary and permanent differences. Furthermore,
upon final settlement of pending tax assessments
any excess or short provision of current tax is also

adjusted in the current year.

Finally, significant judgment is required in relation
to deferred tax assets as their recoverability is
dependent on forecasts of future profitability over a
number of years.

Accordingly, this area has been considered as key
audit matter.

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design
and tested the operational effectiveness of the
Bank’s key controls over the recognition and
measurement of both current tax and deferred tax,
including the assumptions used in estimating the
Bank’s taxable income.

We reviewed tax position for those years where
income tax assessment is pending and assess
adequacy of tax provision recorded by the Bank.
Special focus attention was given to any
reversal/adjustment of income tax provision from

prior year.

We also assessed the completeness and accuracy of

the data used for the estimations of future taxainJ

(0%
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At year end of 2022 the Bank reported income tax
provision net off AIT of Tk 4,144 million (2021: Tk
5,022 million) and corresponding current income
tax charges of Tk 3,766 million (2021: 3,467
million). In addition, total deferred tax assets of
BDT 4,770 million (2021: BDT 4,147 million) and
deferred tax income of BDT 590 million (2021:
BDT 1,125 million) recognised by the Bank.

income. The Bank has sufficient taxable profit to
recover the deferred tax assets in foreseeable future.

We involved tax specialists to assess key
assumptions, controls, recognition and
measurement of current and deferred tax.

Finally — assessed the appropriateness and

presentation of disclosures against IAS 12 Income
Tax including deduction of DTA on specific
provision from regulatory capital.

See notes no 10.4, 17.9, 43 to the financial statements

Risk

Our response to the risk

1 Valuation of treasury bill and bond and unquoted corporate bond

Investment in treasury bills and a portion of treasury
bonds are classified as HFT and hence measured at
mark to market/fair value.

On the other hand a portion of treasury bills and
portfolio of corporate bonds are classified as HTM
and measured at amortised cost.

In the absence of a quoted price in an active market,
the fair value of T-Bills and T-Bonds is determined
using complex valuation techniques which may take
into consideration direct or indirect unobservable
market data and complex pricing models which
require an elevated level of judgment.

Similarly, impairment assessment of financial

instruments measured at amortised cost also
required mainly unobservable market data and

assumptions.

Accordingly, this is considered as a key audit
matter,

We assessed the processes and controls put in place
by the Bank to identify and confirm the existence of
treasury bills and bonds, and corporate bonds.

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design
and tested the operating effectiveness of the key
controls over the corporate bonds, treasury bills and
bonds valuation/impairment assessment processes,
including controls over market data inputs into
valuation models, model governance, and valuation
adjustments.

We tested a sample of the valuation models and the
inputs used in those models, using a variety of
techniques, including comparing inputs to available
market data.

Finally — assessed the appropriateness and
presentation of disclosures against relevant
accounting standards and Bangladesh Bank

guidelines.

See note # 7 to the financial statements

Risk

Our response to the risk

Impairment of goodwill in consolidated financial statements of the Group and fair value of

investments in standalone financial statements of the Bank

The Bank has adopted IFRS 9 Fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) method for
measurement of equity investment in subsidiaries
and financial

statements. As all such investments are in unquoted

associates in the standalone

investment, management used net assets value of' the

Our audit procedures on both assessment of
goodwill impairment at the Group level and carrying
value of investments in subsidiaries at the Bank
level included, among others:
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cach investment as per the financial statements of
the entity every year as fair value as management
has assumed that if buyer offer any price of the
Bank’s investments, they will refer to NAV as
reference price. The carrying value of such
investment at 31 December 2022 the carrying
amount was Tk 13,593 million (2021: 13,182 Tk
million).

Similarly, the Group has recognised goodwill of
BDT 1,373 million (2021: BDT 1,427 million)
which were arisen from acquisition of BRAC EPL
Stock Brokerage Limited, BRAC EPL Investments
Limited.

The determination of fair value of the Bank’s
investment in subsidiary and annual impairment
testing of goodwill at the Group level are considered
to be a key audit matter due to the complexity of the
accounting requirements and the significant
judgement required in determining the assumptions
to be used to estimate the recoverable amount (i.e.
the higher of the value in use or fair value e.g.
NAV). Both the value in use and fair value have
determined of valuation

assumptions and inputs including estimates of

been with a number
revenue, operating costs, terminal value, growth
rates and the weighted average cost of capital

(discount rate).

o evaluating the appropriateness — of the |
assumptions applied to key inputs such as
revenue, operating costs, inflation and long-
growth by

including comparing these inputs with our own

term rates used management,
assessments based on our knowledge of the

entity and the industry;

o checking mathematical accuracy of the model,
recalculating discount rate used in the model,
reviewing other inputs in the model and
corroborating these inputs with reference to
external  market

information,  third-party

sources.

o performing our own sensitivity analysis, which
included assessing the effect of reasonably
possible reductions in growth rates and forecast
cash flows to evaluate the impact on recoverable
amount of the respective subsidiaries; and

o evaluating the adequacy of the financial
statement disclosures.

On winning the appeal from honourable Court in
UK against suspension notice issued earlier, BRAC
Saajan Exchange Limited resumed its operations in
December 2022. However, considering the negative
net asset value and negative cash flows, an
impairment loss of goodwill amounting to BDT
54,905,518 related to BRAC Saajan has been
accounted for in the consolidated financials.

The Bank has continued to consider bKash Limited
as its subsidiary because of holding 51% equity
shares as well effective control on the Board.
bKash
preference shares and these preference shareholders

However, has also issued convertible

do not have any voting rights but has same rights as
equity shareholders with respect to economic
interest in the company. Accordingly, consolidated
financial statements of the Group have been
prepared using 35.74% instead of 51% of the
economic interest bKash the

on considering

potential dilution.

See notes 12 and 38 to the financial statements

(94 ]
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Risk

Our response to the risk

Legal and regulatory matters

We focused on this area because the Bank and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) operates in a legal and
regulatory environment that is exposed to
significant litigation and similar risks arising
from disputes and regulatory proceedings. Such
matters are subject to many uncertainties and the
outcome may be difficult to predict.

These uncertainties inherently affect the amount
and timing of potential outflows with respect to
the provisions which have been established and
other contingent liabilities.

As per the instruction of Bangladesh Bank, the
Bank has transferred 50% of income earned
through foreign exchange transactions during the
months of May and June 2022, after adjustment
of related income tax to a dedicated CSR Fund.
Management is in discussion with Bangladesh
Bank on utilization of this CSR Fund.

Pursuant to BRPD Circular Letter No. 28 dated
26 July 2022 and BRPD Circular Letter No. 30
dated 27 July 2022, all schedule banks of
Bangladesh are instructed to reduce certain
expenses at the

specific percentage from

allocated amount.

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design
and tested the operational effectiveness of the Bank’s
key controls over compliance with various regulatory
directives and process to create provision, if any.

We enquired to those charged with governance to
obtain their view on compliance status of all regulatory
matters.

We enquired of the Bank’s internal legal counsel for all
significant litigation and regulatory matters and
inspected internal notes and reports.

We have checked the calculation of the transfer to the
CSR Fund after deducting appropriate tax.

We are informed that the Bank has taken several
initiatives such as rationalizing the usage of office
space to reduce electricity  cost, restricting
entertainment expenses and travelling, reducing and
deferring the expenses on computer and accessories
which are not urgently required etc. are disclosed in the

financial statements.

We also assessed the Bank’s provisions and contingent
liabilities disclosure.

’TQisk

Our response to the risk

IT systems and controls

Our audit procedures have a focus on IT systems
and controls due to the pervasive nature and
complexity of the IT environment, the large
volume of transactions processed in numerous
locations daily and the reliance on automated and
IT dependent manual controls.

Our areas of audit focus included user access
management, developer access to the production
environment and changes to the I'T environment.
These are key to ensuring IT dependent and
application  based controls

are  operating

effectively.

We tested the design and operating effectiveness of the
Bank’s IT access controls over the information systems
that are critical to financial reporting.

We tested IT general controls (logical access, changes
management and aspects of IT operational controls).
This included testing that requests for access to systems
were appropriately reviewed and authorized.

We tested the Bank’s periodic review of access rights
and reviewed requests of changes to systems for
appropriate approval and authorization.

We considered the control environment relating to
various interfaces, configuration and other application
layer controls identified as key to our audit.

6
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Reporting on other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the
information in the Annual Report other than the consolidated and separate financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, on the other information obtained prior to the date of this audit
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements and Internal Controls

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group and also separate financial statements of the Bank in accordance with IFRSs as
explained in note 2, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. The Bank Company Act, 1991 and the Bangladesh Bank Regulations require
the Management to ensure effective internal audit, internal control and risk management functions of the
Group and the Bank. The Management is also required to make a self-assessment on the effectiveness of
anti-fraud internal controls and report to Bangladesh Bank on instances of fraud and forgeries.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Group’s and the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group and the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s and the Bank’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated and separate financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and the Bank’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated and separate financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group and the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
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not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act, 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 2020, the Bank Company
Act. 1991 and the rules and regulations issued by Bangladesh Bank, we also report that:

(1)

(i1)

(iit)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;

to the extent noted during the course of our audit work performed on the basis stated under the
Auditor’s Responsibility section in forming the above opinion on the consolidated financial
statements and considering the reports of the Management to Bangladesh Bank on anti-fraud
internal controls and instances of fraud and forgeries as stated under the Management’s
Responsibility for the financial statements and internal control:

(a) internal audit, internal control and risk management arrangements of the Group as disclosed
in the financial statements appeared to be materially adequate;

(b) nothing has come to our attention regarding material instances of forgery or irregularity or
administrative error and exception or anything detrimental committed by employees of the
Group and its related entities {other than matters disclosed in these financial statements};

Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 of local subsidiaries namely BRAC
EPL Investments Limited, BRAC EPL Stock Brokerage Limited and bKash Limited have been
audited by Rahman Rahman Hug, Chartered Accountants and one associate namely BRAC IT
Services Limited have been audited by Howladar Yunus & Co., Chartered Accountants. The group
reporting pack of the foreign subsidiary BRAC SAAJAN Exchange Limited have been audited by
Reddy Siddiqui LLP, UK. All these entities have been properly reflected in the consolidated
financial statements;

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group and the
Bank so far as it appeared from our examination of those books;

the records and statements submitted by the branches have been properly maintained and
consolidated in the financial statements;

the consolidated balance sheet and consolidated profit and loss account together with the annexed
notes dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

the consolidated financial statements have been drawn up in conformity with prevailing rules,
regulations and accounting standards as well as related guidance issued by Bangladesh Bank;

adequate provisions have been made for advance and other assets which are in our opinion,
doubtful of recovery;

the information and explanations required by us have been received and found satisfactory:;
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%) we have reviewed over 80% of the risk weighted assets of the Bank and spent over 3,000 person
hours; and

(xi) Capital to Risk-weighted Asset Ratio (CRAR) as required by Bangladesh Bank has been
maintained adequately during the year.

s e

Sabbir Ahmed FCA, Partner
Enrolment number: 770
Dhaka, 11 April 2023 Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
DVC No: 2304100770AS807408 Chartered Accountants
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BRAC Bank Limited and its subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2022
. 2022 2021

Particulars Note Taka Taka

PROPERTY AND ASSETS

Cash 4 31,871,593,250 23,459,424,430
Cash in hand (Including foreign currency) 11,918,067,777 9,207,161,626
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent bank(s) 19,953,525,473 14,252,262,804
(including foreign currency)

Balance with other banks and financial institutions 5 52,951,344,277 78,261,312,910
Inside Bangladesh 47,797,240,230 70,561,465,538
Outside Bangladesh 5,154,104,047 7,699,847,372

Money at call on short notice 6 6,826,376,000 3,500,000,000

Investments 7 116,551,993,858 70,068,593,304
Government 107,319,008,486 60,998,642,835
Others 9,232,985,372 9,069,950,469

Loans and advances 8 412,084,750,584 322,135,188,439
Loans, cash credit, overdrafts etc. 222,711,877,598 169,128,372,833
Small and medium enterprises 187,247,111,913 150,749,009,625
Bills purchased and discounted 2,125,761,073 2,257,805,981

Fixed assets including premises, furniture and fixtures 9 13,463,514,348 12,834,169,424

Other assets 10 20,803,842,677 16,222,224,464

Non-banking assets 11 11,344,700 4,541,700

Goodwill 12 1,372,563,393 1,427,468,911

Total property and assets 655,937,320,087 527,912,923,582

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Liabilities

Borrowings from other banks, financial institutions and agents 13 38,908,810,526 24,150,953,707

Borrowings from central bank & government agencies 14 42,184,501,809 23,175,903,824

Affordable housing bond 15 4,751,000,000 -

Money at call on short notice - -

Deposits and other accounts 16 447,058,816,329 364,329,900,482
Current accounts and other accounts 187,855,608,325 164,417,743,536
Bills payable 1,739,503,614 2,367,889,416
Savings deposits 71,890,957,598 68,334,576,200
Term deposits 182,973,780,522 127,956,809,129
Other deposits 2,598,966,270 1,252,882,201

Other liabilities 17 42,004,580,813 39,308,075,071

Total liabilities 574,907,709,477 450,964,833,084

Capital and shareholders' equity
Paid up capital 18.2 14,965,853,280 13,921,723,990
Share premium 18.7 3,853,767,032 3,853,767,032
Statutory reserve 19 11,148,169,834 10,067,956,958
Dividend equalization fund 20 355,218,455 355,218,455
Revaluation reserve on govt. securities 21 1,337,245,165 2,490,292,927
Fair value reserve 78,920,073 78,920,073
Foreign currency translation reserve 23 328,402,260 16,632,383
Surplus in profit and loss account/Retained earnings 24.1 29,086,051,630 26,402,962,532

Total shareholders' equity 61,153,627,729 57,187,474,350

Non-controlling interest 24.2 19,875,982,881 19,760,616,148

Total equity 81,029,610,610 76,948,090,498

Total liabilities and equity 655,937,320,087 527,912,923,582

11




Consolidated Balance Sheet

\
l BRAC Bank Limited and its subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2022
- 2022 2021
Particulars Note Taka Taka
Off balance sheet items
Contingent liabilities
Acceptances and endorsements 25 83,028,540,659 50,478,536,940
Irrevocable letters of credit 25 27,451,963,219 26,598,203,443
Letter of guarantees 25.2 18,607,062,875 11,793,414,671
Bills for collection 25.3 21,612,714,770 16,438,866,245
150,700,281,523 105,309,021,299
Other commitments
Swap deals with banks and customers 25.4 13,0'70,011,143 10,726,189,903
Spot and forward deals with banks and customers 25.4 2,074,308,915 18,161,597,791
15,144,320,058 28,887,787,694
Total off balance sheet items 165,844,601,581 134,196,808,993
Net asset value (NAV) per share 49 | 40.86 || 38.21 |

The not:

1to 51.5 and annexures A to J form an integral part of these financial statements.

Mana@ Director and CEO

4 ‘ Director

Director

As per our report of same date.

Chairman

A\,&___ M- (\J\W

U W VY

Dhaka, 11 April 2023
DVC No: 2304100770AS807408

Sabbir Ahmed FCA, Partner
Enrolment No: 770

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Chartered Accountants
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BRAC Bank Limited and its subsidiaries

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 December 2022

< 2022 2021
Particulars Note Taka Taka
Interest income 27 31,365,476,735 24,225,217,948
Interest paid on deposits and borrowing etc. 28 12,953,873,731 7,912,883,508
Net interest income 18,411,603,004 16,312,334,440
Investment income 29 7,585,930,404 7,142,434,925
Commission, exchange and brokerage 30 11,522,088,039 7,992,853,236
Other operating income 31 313,551,635 175,087,450
Total operating income (a) 37,833,173,082 31,622,710,051
Salaries and allowances 12,044,197,172 9,889,092,833
Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity etc. 32 697,538,365 645,414,492
Legal expenses 62,177,773 62,840,810
Postage, stamps, telecommunication etc. 33 411,043,177 317,984,231
Stationery, printing, advertisement etc. 34 3,223,940,283 2,608,773,879
Chief Executive's salary and fees 35 24,471,250 19,424,250
Directors' fees 36 4,534,312 4,572,209
Auditors' fees 37 8,469,389 7,125,166
Impairment of goodwill 38 54,905,518 -
Depreciation and repair of the bank’s assets 39 5,382,602,590 4,577,170,806
Other expenses 40 4,474,735,716 3,383,027,192
Total operating expenses (b) 26,388,615,545 21,515,425,868
Profit before provisions (¢ = a-b) 11,444,557,537 10,107,284,183
Share of profit of associates 41 4,860,182 3,742,052
Gain on disposal of associates 2,049,419 17,373,182
Profit/(loss) before provisions (d) 11,451,467,138 10,128,399,417
Provision for loans/investments:
Loans and advances 1,938,266,664 2,971,016,470
Diminution in value of investments 20,539,430 (74,000,000)
Off balance sheet items 204,740,420 251,500,000
Other provisions 23,870,068 70,093,002
Total provisions (e) 42 2,187,416,582 3,218,609,472
Total profit/(loss) before taxes (f= d-e) 9,264,050,556 6,909,789,945
Provision for taxation:
Current tax expense 4,280,691,722 3,737,018,428
Deferred tax expense/(income) (1,138,637,890) (1,479,828,777)
Total provision for taxation (g) 43 3,142,053,832 2,257,189,651
Net profit/(loss) after taxation (f-g) 6,121,996,724 4,652,600,294
Attributable to:
Equity holders of BRAC Bank Limited 6,013,972,880 5,464,672,680
Non controlling interest 24.2.1 108,023,844 (812,072,386)
6,121,996,724 4,652,600,294
Retained earnings brought forward from previous year 26,402,962,532 16,368,391,545
Net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Bank 6,013,972,880 5,464,672,680
Net effect of all items directly recognised in equity/retained earnings  24.1.1 (104,780,581) 7,322,532,868
Profit available for appropriation 32,312,154,831 29,155,597,093
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BRAC Bank Limited and its subsidiaries
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Particul t
articulars Note Taka Taka
Appropriations:
Statutory reserve 1,080,212,876 662,939,230
General reserve - -
Dividend 2,088,258,589 1,988,817,706
Start-up Fund 57,631,736 100,877,625
3,226,103,201 2,752,634,561
Retained surplus 29,086,051,630 26,402,962,532
Earnings per share (EPS) [previous year's figure restated] a8 | 402 || 3.65 |
The notes 1 to 51.5 and annexures A to J form an integral part of these financial statements.
- \ Director

Manaf} Director and CEO

A A e

Director

Dhaka, 11 April 2023
DVC No: 2304100770AS807408

A\'»sas—. Ho ’{M»—./

As per our report of same date.

Chairman

e K, &

Sabbir Ahmed FCA, Partner

Enrolment No: 770

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Chartered Accountants
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BRAC Bank Limited and its subsidiaries
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Particulars Note 2022 o2l
Taka Taka
A. Cash flows from operating activities
Interest receipts in cash 37,022,269,415 30,510,937,817
Interest payment (10,349,004,887) (8,765,182,197)
Dividend receipts 294,041,064 225,198,769
Fees and commission receipts in cash 44,272,349,310 36,148,193,743
Recoveries on loans previously written off 809,572,845 707,517,594
Cash payments to employees (11,662,291,298) (9,942,261,926)
Cash payments to suppliers (34,548,789,786) (29,490,800,154)
Income tax paid (10,350,920,142) (7,109,584,330)
Receipts from other operating activities 45 953,966,643 592,067,664
Payment for other operating activities 46 (5,714,933,022) (4,049,473,180)
O.pe.rgpng F:ash flow before changes in operating assets and 10,726,260,142 8,826,613,800
liabilities (i)
Increase/(decrease) in operating assets and liabilities
Loans and advances (90,450,491,062) (47,587,679,964)
Other assets (484,467,659) (376,833,057)
Borrowings from other banks and financial institutions 33,877,162,172 10,667,650,315
Proceeds from Issuance of affordable housing bond 4,751,000,000 -
Deposits from customers 80,145,069,185 31,712,233,455
Other liabilities (937,467,553) 483,029,607
Cash utilised in operating assets and liabilities (ii) 26,900,805,083 (5,101,599,644)
Net cash flows from operating activities (i+ii) (a) 37,627,065,225 3,725,014,156
. Cash flows from investing activities
Treasury bills 1,155,677,121 7,996,369,494
Treasury bonds (48,629,090,534) 14,187,750,778
Investment in shares (615,054,764) (863,128,507)
Sale/ (Investment) in bonds 410,000,000 642,282,917
Acquisition of fixed .assets (3,541,826,973) (4,696,385,425)
Disposal of fixed assets 17,736,063 601,372,697
Net cash used in investing activities (b) (51,202,559,087) 17,868,261,954
. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of convertible preference shares - 22,330,724,613
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 112,140,000 -
Cash dividend paid (1,042,217,221) (1,383,245,432)
Net cash flows from financing activities ( c) (930,077,221) 20,947,479,181
Net increase/(decrease) in cash (a+b+c) (14,505,571,083) 42,540,755,291
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 105,222,018,140 62,639,236,011
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalent 934,394,370 42,026,838
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 44 91,650,841,427 105,222,018,140
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year:
Cash in hand (including foreign currency) 11,918,067,777 9,207,161,626
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agents bank(s) 19,953,525,473 14,252,262,804
(including foreign currency)
Balance with other banks and financial institutions 52,951,344,277 78,261,312,910
Money at call on short notice 6,826,376,000 3,500,000,000
Prize Bond 1,527,900 1,280,800
91,650,841,427 105,222,018,140
Net operating cash flow per share (NOCFPS) 50 | 25.14 || 2.49 |

The notes 1 to 51.5 and annexures A to J form an integral part of these financial statements.
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BRAC Bank Limited
Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2022
: 2022 2021

Particulars Note Taka Taka

PROPERTY AND ASSETS

Cash 4 31,776,214,097 22,676,943,467
Cash in hand (Including foreign currency) 11,822,688,624 8,424,680,663
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent bank(s) 19,953,525,473 14,252,262,804
(Including foreign currency)

Balance with other banks and financial institutions 5 16,255,534,724 19,880,951,145
Inside Bangladesh 11,127,982,840 12,261,365,946
Outside Bangladesh 5,127,5651,884 7,619,585,199

Money at call on short notice 6 6,826,376,000 3,500,000,000

Investments 7 64,287,682,264 51,590,814,842
Government 56,637,669,673 44,051,798,178
Others 7,650,012,591 7,539,016,664

Loans and advances 8 410,676,406,960 321,212,230,987
Loans, cash credit, overdrafts etc. 221,303,533,974 168,205,415,381
Small and medium enterprises 187,247,111,913 150,749,009,625
Bills purchased & discounted 2,125,761,073 2,257,805,981

Fixed assets including premises, furniture and fixtures 9 7,779,346,693 7,454,867,399

Other assets 10 25,626,075,864 22,763,775,341

Non-banking assets 11 11,344,700 4,541,700

Total property and assets 563,238,978,302 449,084,124,881

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Liabilities

Borrowings from other banks, financial institutions & agents 13 38,685,377,271 24,134,564,025

Borrowings from central bank & government agencies 14 42,184,501,809 23,175,903,824

Affordable housing bond 15 4,751,000,000 -

Money at call on short notice = =

Deposits and other accounts 16 384,466,775,242 314,590,914,520
Current accounts & other accounts 123,148,401,399 109,462,945,554
Bills payable 1,739,503,614 2,367,889,416
Savings deposits 71,890,957,598 68,334,576,200
Term deposits 185,088,946,361 133,172,621,149
Other deposits 2,598,966,270 1,252,882,201

Other liabilities 17 34,760,769,207 32,763,271,381

Total Liabilities 504,848,423,529 394,664,653,750

Capital and shareholders' equity
Paid up capital 18.2 14,965,853,280 13,921,723,990
Share premium 18.7 3,853,767,032 3,853,767,032
Statutory reserve 19 11,112,086,248 10,067,956,958
Dividend equalization fund 20 355,218,455 355,218,455
Revaluation reserve on govt. securities 21 1,337,245,165 2,490,292,927
Fair value gain/(loss) on equity investment 22 7,643,913,224 7,384,920,564
Foreign currency translation reserve 23 323,536,914 15,729,653
Surplus in profit and loss account/Retained earnings 24 18,798,934,455 16,329,861,552

Total shareholders' equity 58,390,554,773 54,419,471,131

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 563,238,978,302 449,084,124,881
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BRAC Bank Limited
Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2022
. 2022 2021
Particulars Note Taka Taka
Off balance sheet items
Contingent liabilities
Acceptances and endorsements 25 83,028,540,659 50,478,536,940
Irrevocable letters of credit 25 27,451,963,219 26,598,203,443
Letter of guarantees 25.2 18,607,062,875 11,793,414,671
Bills for collection 25.3 21,612,714,770 16,438,866,245
150,700,281,523 105,309,021,299
Other Commitments
Swap deals with banks and customers 25.4 13,070,011,143 10,726,189,903
Spot and forward deals with banks and customers 25.4 2,074,308,915 18,161,597,791
15,144,320,058 28,887,787,694
Total off balance sheet items 165,844,601,581 134,196,808,993
Net asset value (NAV) per share 49 | 39.02 | [ 36.36 |

The notes 1 to 51.5 and annexures A to J form an integral part of these financial statements.

L= 7V n
Managmt?rector and CEO Director
Director ’ Chairman

As per our report of same date.

Dhaka, 11 April 2023
DVC No: 2304100770AS807408
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Sabbir Ahmed FCA, Partner
Enrolment No: 770

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Chartered Accountants



BRAC Bank Limited

Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Particulars Note a2z 2024

Taka Taka
Interest income 27 28,462,101,118 21,586,220,747
Interest paid on deposits and borrowing etc. 28 13,227,359,203 7,589,298,326
Net interest income 15,234,741,915 13,996,922,421
Investment income 29 5,184,549,425 5,780,677,077
Commission, exchange and brokerage 30 5,884,319,986 3,440,196,921
Other operating income 31 267,298,708 146,093,679
Total operating income (a) 26,570,910,034 23,363,890,098
Salaries and allowances 8,151,587,989 6,625,995,876
Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity etc. 32 507,158,511 473,700,396
Legal expenses 30,384,953 33,352,689
Postage, stamps, telecommunication etc. 33 308,505,338 222,631,352
Stationery, printing, advertisement etc. 34 396,662,334 221,634,405
Chief Executive's salary and fees 35 24,471,250 19,424,250
Directors' fees 36 2,552,000 2,437,600
Auditors' fees 37 1,840,000 1,840,000
Depreciation and repair of the bank’s assets 39 2,304,559,343 2,191,026,040
Other expenses 40, 3,713,939,396 2,627,953,670
Total operating expenses (b) 15,441,661,114 12,419,996,278
Profit before provisions (¢ = a-b) 11,129,248,920 10,943,893,820
Provision for loans/Investments:
Loans and advances 1,945,536,063 2,810,975,910
Diminution in value of investments 20,539,430 (74,000,000)
Off balance sheet items 204,740,420 251,500,000
Other provisions 19,572,571 65,866,351
Total provisions (d) 42 2,190,388,484 3,054,342,261
Total profit/(loss) before taxes (e= c-d) 8,938,860,436 7,889,551,559
Provision for taxation:
Current tax expense 3,765,699,754 3,467,399,481
Deferred tax income (590,012,891) (1,124,778,486)
Total provision for taxation (f) 43 3,175,686,863 2,342,620,995
Net profit after taxation (e-f) 5,763,173,573 5,546,930,564
Retained earnings brought forward from previous year 16,329,861,552 13,680,255,527
Net effect of all items directly recognised in equity-retained earnings (104,081,055) (144,689,978)
Profit available for appropriation 21,988,954,070 19,082,496,113

20




BRAC Bank Limited
Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Particulars Note 2022 2024

Taka Taka
Appropriations:
Statutory reserve 1,044,129,290 662,939,230
General reserve - -
Dividend 2,088,258,589 1,988,817,706
Start-up Fund 57,631,736 100,877,625

3,190,019,615 2,752,634,561

Retained Surplus 18,798,934,455 16,329,861,552
Earnings per share (EPS) [previous year's figure restated] 48 [ 385 || 3.71 |

The notes 1 to 51.5 and annexures A to J form an integral part of these financial statements.

Mana%rﬁbirector and CEO
W

Director

Dhaka, 11 April 2023
DVC No: 2304100770AS807408

LM.(.

- L Director

As per our report of same date.

Chairman

Al N\»—v—/

e I

Sabbir Ahmed FCA, Partner

Enrolment No: 770

Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Chartered Accountants
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BRAC Bank Limited
Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Particulars Note 2022 A0
Taka Taka

A. Cash flows from operating activities
Interest receipts in cash 31,508,895,124 27,105,416,678
Interest payment (10,508,367,195) (8,504,508,879)
Dividend receipts 232,498,460 174,618,013
Fees and commission receipts in cash 5,884,319,987 3,440,196,921
Recoveries on loans previously written off 809,572,845 707,517,594
Cash payments to employees (8,135,922,799) (6,597,572,669)
Cash payments to suppliers (680,215,058) (480,845,623)
Income tax paid (4,642,899,233) (2,5657,956,724)
Receipts from other operating activities 45 1,033,184,962 710,776,014
Payment for other operating activities 46 (5,385,487,007) (3,597,592,564)
(A)pe‘r'a'Fmg ansh flow before changes in operating assets and 10,115,580,086 10,400,048,761
liabilities (i)
Increase/decrease in operating assets and liabilities
Loans and advances (89,464,175,973) (48,149,037,787)
Other assets (524,779,722) (400,388,462)
Borrowings from other banks and financial institutions 33,5659,411,231 11,942,273,035
Proceeds from Issuance of affordable housing bond 4,751,000,000 -
Deposits from customers 67,558,949,157 26,460,328,428
Other liabilities (996,961,563) 912,507,742
Cash utilised in operating assets and liabilities (ii) 14,883,443,130 (9,234,317,044)
Net cash flows from operating activities (i+ii) (a) 24,999,023,216 1,165,731,717

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Treasury bills (422,721,002) 170,075,754
Treasury bonds (13,316,198,255) 15,284,380,330
Sale/ (Investment) in shares (520,995,927) (1,107,182,775)
Sale/ (Investment) in bonds 410,000,000 642,282,917
Acquisition of fixed assets (2,118,856,350) (2,955,859,632)
Disposal of fixed assets 17,653,002 601,254,376
Net cash used in investing activities (b) (15,951,118,532) 12,634,950,970

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid (1,042,217,220)|[ (1,383,245,433)|
Net cash flows from financing activities ( c) (1,042,217,221) (1,383,245,433)
Net increase/decrease in cash (a+b+c) 8,005,687,463 12,417,437,254
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 46,059,175,412 33,603,286,202
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalent 794,789,846 38,451,956
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 44 54,859,652,721 46,059,175,412
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year:
Cash in hand (including foreign currency) 11,822,688,624 8,424,680,663
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agents bank(s) 19,953,525,473 14,252,262,804
(including foreign currency)
Balance with other banks and financial institutions 16,255,534,724 19,880,951,145
Money at call on short notice 6,826,376,000 3,500,000,000
Prize Bond 1,527,900 1,280,800

54,859,652,721 46,059,175,412

Net operating cash flow per share (NOCFPS) 50 16.70 | | 0.78 |

The notes 1 to 51.5 and annexures A to J form an integral part of these financial statements.

The reconciliation of net profit with cash flows from operating activities (standalone basis) has been presented at note - 47.
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BRAC Bank Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

1

11

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

1.6

THE BANK AND ITS ACTIVITIES

BRAC Bank Limited

BRAC Bank Limited (the "Bank" or "BRAC Bank') is a scheduled commercial bank established under the Bank Company Act, 1991, and
incorporated as a public company, limited by shares, on 20 May 1999 under the Companies Act, 1994, in Bangladesh, vide RJSC registration no.
C-37782(2082)/99. The primary objective of the bank is to conduct all kinds of banking businesses. On completion of all legal formalities, the
bank commenced its operations on 4th July 2001. At present, the bank has 187 banking branches (2021: 187 branches), 11 sub-branches,
198 Area offices (2021: 198 Area offices), 456 SME unit offices (2021: 456 SME unit offices), 1,000 agent banking outlets (2021: 785 agent
outlets), 324 ATMs (2021: 373 ATMs) and 39 RCDMs and spread across the country. The registered address of the bank is: Anik Tower, 220/B
Tejgaon Gulshan Link Road, Tejgaon, Dhaka-1208. BRAC Bank was listed on the Dhaka Stock Exchange and Chittagong Stock Exchange as a
publicly traded company on 28 January 2007 and on 24 January 2007 respectively. The Bank has four subsidiaries and one associate
companies in related operations. A brief description of the subsidiaries and associates of the Bank has been provided in Note 1.6.

Principal activities and nature of operations
The principal activities of the Bank are banking and related activities including accepting customer deposits, lending to retail, small and medium
enterprise (SME) and corporate customers, trade financing, lease financing, project financing, issuing letter of credit (LCs), inter bank borrowing

and lending, dealing in government securities, equity shares etc. There have been no significant changes in the nature of operations of the Bank
during the financial year under review.

As a fully operational commercial bank, BRAC Bank Limited focuses on pursuing unexplored market niches in the SME business, which hitherto
has remained largely untapped within the country. Significant percentage of BRAC Bank's clients had no prior experience with formal banking.
With the view to reaching clients, the Bank has established a wide network of branches, zonal offices, SME unit offices and agent banking outlets
offering services in the heart of rural and urban communities.

As a founder member of GABV and being the trailblazer of values-based banking in Bangladesh, Bank always strives to contribute towards
achieving the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), where financing for SMEs to generate employment in an environmentally-friendly manner
remains as our top priority. The Bank also serving as intermediary for Triple Bottom Line (TBL) by supporting individual or enterprises delivering
impact in at least one of the following categories: social empowerment (people), environmental regeneration (planet), and/or economic resiliency
(prosperity).

Off-shore banking unit (OBU)

The Bank commenced its off-shore banking operation on obtaining permission from Bangladesh Bank in 2010. The Off-shore Banking Unit (OBU)
is governed by the rules and guidelines of Bangladesh Bank. The consolidated and separate financial statements of the bank included the
operations of OBU. In addition, a separate financial statements of OBU has been presented in Annexure-H. In addition, the principal activities of
OBU are to provide all kinds of commercial banking services to its customers in Bangladesh in foreign currency.

Custodian Service

The Bank obtained permission to work as a security custodian from Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission vide its certificate no. SC-
10/2009 dated 12 November 2009 under the Securities and Exchange Commission (Securities Custodian Service) Rules 2003. Financial
performance of Security Custodial Services have been separately reported in Annexure-l along with Bank's audited financial statements in
compliance with the requirement u/s 10(2) of Security Custodial Services Rules 2003. The due certificate from external auditors has been
obtained on internal control and financial statements of security custodial operations of the Bank and annexed with the financial statements.

Agent banking

BRAC Bank obtained permission from Bangladesh Bank on 11 March 2018, vide reference no. BRPD(P-3)745/(50)2018-1806, to commence
agent banking outlets and subsequently started commercial operations on 11 September 2018. Till 31 December 2022, the bank has already
opened 1,000 agent banking outlets in 64 districts across the country. Services that are currently being dispensed include account opening
(current, savings & term deposit), cash deposit and withdrawal, instant fund transfer within BRAC Bank and outside BRAC Bank accounts
through BEFTN, SME loan disbursement & repayment collection, foreign remittance disbursement, corporate bill/distributor fee collection, retail
loan and credit card lead generation, credit card bill collection, insurance premium collection, utility bill collection, cheque book & debit card
request process & delivery, internet and SMS banking and balance inquiry etc.

Subsidiaries and associates of BRAC Bank Limited

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity if it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The Group reassesses whether it has
control if there are changes to one or more of the elements of control. This includes circumstances in which protective rights held (e.g. those
resulting from a lending relationship) become substantive and lead to the Group having power over an investee. Financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which control
ceases.

An associate is an enterprise in which the investor has significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture of the investor
(IAS-28: Investments in Associates and joint venture ). Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, but there is no control over those policies. Investment in associates is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the ‘equity method'. Under this method, the investment is initially recorded at cost and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor's share of profits or losses of the investee after the date of acquisition. The investor's share of the investee's

profits or losses is recognised in the investor's profit and loss account. Distributions received from an investee reduce the carrying amount of the
investment.
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BRAC Bank Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

16.1

1.6.2

1.6.3

1.6.4

If the holding in subsidiary disposed-off in such a way that the status of the holding now comes to ‘Associate’ then the fair value of the holding
retained in the said entity at the date of such disposal has been considered as opening balance of investment in associate in consolidated
financial statements and related gains and losses have been recognised directly in consolidated equity. Any share of profits and losses after
such change/disposal have been recognised in consolidated profit and loss as per equity method.

Summary of shareholding in subsidiaries and associates
BRAC Bank's shareholding position in its four subsidiaries and one associate is summarized below:

Name of Face Total no. of ordinary shares No. of ordinary shares held by |[BBL's percentage of
subsidiaries and || value per || Nature of business : BBL shareholding
el i 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 | 2021
BRAC EPL _

BDT10 ||Merchant banking || 258,500,000 | 258,500,000 | 258,358,734 | 258,358,734 || 99.95% | 99.95%
Investments Ltd.
BRACEPLStock llpnt 100 [[stock brokerage 8,411,446 8,411,446 7,570,249 | 7,570,249 || 90.00% | 90.00%
Brokerage Ltd.
bKash Ltd. BT 100 [|MoPile financial 381,049 381,949 194,800 194,800 || 51.00% | 51.00%

services (MFS)

BRAGSMUAN  lloppy  ([REMiMANSES 1,333,333 333,333 1,250,000 250,000 || 93.75% | 75.00%
Exchange Ltd. exchange services
EIF;AC [F-=erges ':%TO o [T services 233,729 233,729 23,372 30,190 || 9.9996% | 12.92%

BRAC EPL Investments Limited (subsidiary)

BRAC Bank acquired 51% shares of Equity Partners Limited on 31 July 2009. This entity was incorporated in Bangladesh on 19 April 2000 as a
private limited company, under the Companies Act, 1994, and was subsequently renamed as "BRAC EPL Investments Limited". BRAC Bank
acquired an additional 25% shares in the entity in 2011 and an additional 18.57% in 2016. During 2017, the bank acquired a further 5.275% in
the entity. During 2019, the bank acquired another 0.10%, thus taking the total shareholding to 99.945% at the end of the year 2019.

BRAC EPL Investments was established to cater to the needs of the fast growing capital markets of Bangladesh. It works as a merchant bank
with a full-fledged merchant banking license from Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC). The company's service portfolio
comprises lead managing initial public offerings, domestic and international placements, portfolio management and project development and
consultancy.

BRAC EPL Stock Brokerage Limited (subsidiary)

BRAC Bank Limited acquired 51% shares of Equity Partners Securities Limited on 31 July 2009. Equity Partners Securities Limited was
incorporated in Bangladesh on 16 May 2000 as a private limited company under the Companies Act, 1994. Subséquently, the management
decided to rename Equity Partners Securities Limited as BRAC EPL Stock Brokerage Limited. In the year 2011, the bank acquired an additional
39% shares of EPL Stock Brokerage Limited. As a result, the bank's controlling interest has risen to 90% of EPL Stock Brokerage Limited.

BRAC EPL Stock Brokerage Limited was established to cater to the needs of the brokerage business in Bangladesh. It has corporate membership
of both Dhaka Stock Exchange and Chittagong Stock Exchange.

bKash Limited (subsidiary)

BRAC Bank Limited formed bKash Limited, a private company limited by shares incorporated on 1 March 2010 under the Companies Act, 1994.
bKash Limited was established to introduce mobile financial services in Bangladesh. The bank has obtained a license from Bangladesh Bank for
bKash Limited to render mobile financial services (MFS). BRAC Bank currently holds 51% equity shares in the company.

With the consent of all existing shareholders, in 2014 Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation (B&M), in 2018 Alipay Singapore E-Commerce Private
Limited ("Alipay") and in 2021 SoftBank further invested in bKash Limited in the form of convertible preference shares. As on 31 December
2021, out of the total 163,104 convertible preference shares, B&M holds 22,525 shares, Alipay holds 55,433 shares and SoftBank holds
85,146 shares. Preference shareholders do not have any voting rights but has same rights as equity shareholders with respect to economic
interest in the company. These preference shares are convertible at a 1:1 basis to ordinary shares subject to consent as per shareholders'
agreement. Consolidated financial statements have been prepared using 35.74% instead of 51% considering the potential dilution, or otherwise
according to economic interest on bKash.

BRAC SAAJAN Exchange Limited (subsidiary)

At the inception, BRAC Bank Limited acquired 75%+1 shares of "SAAJAN Worldwide Money Transfer Limited" (SWMTL) in the UK. Bangladesh
Bank provided necessary approvals of GBP 500,000 to acquire SWMTL and setting up two new branches in Luton and Bradford, UK. As per
permission of Bangladesh Bank, SWMTL has been renamed as "BRAC SAAJAN Exchange Ltd" (BSEL). BRAC SAAJAN Exchange Limited was
established to offer remittance and exchange services in the UK.

Notable that the operation of BRAC SAAJAN Exchange Limited was suspended in 2021 on regulatory ground by the local regulator in UK.
Management lodged an appeal against the suspension before the Court in UK. After long hearing, the honorable Court released a verdict in 2022
in favour of BRAC Saajan and nodded the company to resume its operations. Accordingly, the company has resumed its operations in December
2022.
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1.6.5

2.2

Considering the minimum capital requirement as per Financial Conduct Authority (FCA), UK and to resume its full-fledged operations, the
company (BRAC Saajan) converted the outstanding OD Loan facilities of BRAC Bank as additional share capital of GBP 1,000,000 (equivalent to
BDT 112,140,000) with due approval from the regulators. Currently, BRAC Bank Limited holds 93.75% shares (1,250,000 no. of shares out of
the total 1,333,333 shares) of BRAC SAAJAN Exchange Ltd (BSEL).

BRAC IT Services Limited (biTS) (associate)

BRAC IT Services Ltd. (biTS) was initially founded as Documenta™ Ltd, a digital archiving firm, in 1999. BRAC IT Services Ltd. was then formed in
April 2013 through the merger of Documenta™ Ltd and the IT Division of BRAC Bank. BRAC Bank acquired 51% shares of BRAC IT Services
Limited, a private company limited by shares under the Companies Act, 1994, incorporated on 9 April 2013. It currently operates as an IT
services company. In the year 2017, BRAC Bank reduced its holding in BRAC IT Services Limited from 51% to 48.67% by selling 1,034 shares to

BRAC. However, due to additional investment by BRAC, the holding percentage of BRAC Bank further reduced to 12.92% at the end of the year
2020.

In 2022, BRAC Bank further disposed off 6,818 no. of shares (2.92% shareholding) to BRAC upon approval from Bangladesh Bank and the
bank's shareholding in biTS reduced to 9.9996%. Considering the significant management involvement, the company is still considered as an
associate of the Bank as per international accounting standards (IASs)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements
Preparation of separate financial statements of the bank for the year ended 31 December 2022 comprise the operation of the Domestic Banking
Unit (DBU) (main operations), as well as operations of the Off-shore Banking Unit (OBU), together referred to as ‘the Bank'.

Consolidated financial statements include separate financial statements of the BRAC Bank Limited and financial statements of all subsidiaries',
as those of a single economic entity and together referred to as ‘the Group'. There were no significant changes in the operations of the
bank/group entities.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 10:
Consolidated Financial Statements. The consolidated financial statements are prepared to a common reporting year ended 31 December 2022.
Intra-company transactions, balances and intra-group gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated on consolidation.

Statement of compliance with applicable laws, regulations and standards

The Financial Reporting Act 2015 (FRA) was enacted in 2015. Under the FRA, the Financial Reporting Council (FRC) was formed in 2017 and has
adopted International Accounting Standards (IASs) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as the applicable Financial Reporting
Standards for public interest entities such as banks with effect from 2 November 2020.

The consolidated and separate financial statements of the Group and the bank have been prepared in accordance with the IFRS adopted by FRC
and in addition to this, the bank also complied with the requirements of the following laws and regulations from various government bodies:

i)  The Bank Company Act, 1991, and amendment thereon;

ii) The Companies Act, 1994;

iii) Circulars, Rules and Regulations issued by Bangladesh Bank (BB) time to time;

iv) Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Rules, 2020; Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969; Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Act, 1993 and Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (Public Issue) Rules 2015 and amendments thereon;

v) The Income Tax Ordinance, 1984, and amendments thereon;

vi) The Value Added Tax Act, 2012, The Value Added Tax Rules, 2016 and amendments thereon;

vi) Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited (DSE), Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited (CSE) and Central Depository Bangladesh Limited (CDBL) rules
and regulations; and

viii) Financial Reporting Act, 2015.

The Central Bank of Bangladesh ('Bangladesh Bank’), as primary regulator of the banking industry, has issued a number of circulars/directives
which are not consistent with the requirements specified in I1ASs/IFRSs. In case any requirement of the Bank Company Act, 1991, and provisions
and circulars issued by Bangladesh Bank (BB) differ with those of IFRSs, the requirements of the Bank Company Act, 1991, and provisions and
circulars issued by BB shall prevail.

Bank has departed from certain contradictory requirements of IFRSs in order to comply with the rules and regulations of Bangladesh Bank which
are disclosed below:

i) Investment in equity instruments except investment in subsidiaries and associates

Treatment as per IFRS Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guidelines

As per requirements of IFRS 9: Classification and measurement of||As per Banking Regulation and Policy Department (BRPD) circular
investment in equity instruments depend on how these are managed|[no. 14, dated 25 June 2003, investments in quoted shares and
(the entity’s business model) and their contractual cash flow||unquoted shares are revalued at the year-end at market price and
characteristics. Based on these factors, it would generally fall either|{as per the book value of the last audited balance sheet,
under ‘at fair value through profit and loss account’ or under ‘at fair||respectively. Provisions should be made for any loss arising from
value through other comprehensive income' where any change in the||diminution in value of investments; otherwise investments are
fair value (measured in accordance with IFRS 13) at the year-end is||recognised at cost.

taken to the profit and loss account or other comprehensive income,
respectively.
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ii) Subsequent measurement of Government securities

Treatment as per IFRS

Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guidelines

Financial Instruments, these investments can

"Fair Value through Other Comprehensive

a part of equity.

Government securities refer primarily to various debt instruments
which include both bonds and bills. As per requirements of IFRS 9:

be categorised as

"Amortised Cost (AC)", or "Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)", or

Income (FVOCI)".

Investments designated as Amortised Cost are measured at amortised
cost method, and interest income is recognised through profit and loss
account. Any changes in fair value of investments designated as FVTPL
is recognised in the profit and loss account. Any changes in fair value
of investments designated as FVOCI is recognised in other reserves, as

As per DOS Circular no. 05, dated 26 May 2008, and subsequent
clarification in DOS Circular no. 05, dated 28 January 2009,
Government securities/bills are classified into Held for Trading|
(HFT) and Held to Maturity (HTM). HFT securities are revalued on
the basis of mark-to-market and at year-end, any gains on
revaluation of securities which have not matured as at the balance
sheet date are recognised in other reserves as a part of equity. Any
losses on revaluation of securities which have not matured as at
the balance sheet date are charged in the profit and loss account.
Interest on HFT securities, including amortisation of discount, are
recognised in the profit and loss account. HTM securities which
have not matured as at the balance sheet date are amortised at
year-end, and gains or losses on amortization are recognised in
other reserves as part of equity.

iii) Provision on loans and advances

Treatment as per IFRS

Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guidelines

As per IFRS 9: Financial Instruments, an entity

those loans and advances for which credit risk

reporting date.

shall recognise an

impairment allowance on loans and advances based on expected
credit losses. At each reporting date, an entity shall measure
impairment allowance for loans and advances at an amount equal to
the lifetime expected credit losses, if the credit risk on these loans and
advances has increased significantly since initial recognition, whether
assessed on an individual or collective basis, considering all
reasonable information (including that which is forward-looking). For

has not increased

significantly since initial recognition, at each reporting date, an entity
shall measure the impairment allowance at an amount equal to 12-
month expected credit losses that may result from default events on
such loans and advances that are possible within 12 months after the

As per BRPD circular no. 14 dated 23 September 2012, BRPD
circular no. 19 dated 27 December 2012, BRPD circular no. 05
dated 29 May 2013, BRPD circular no. 16 dated 18 November
2014, BRPD circular No. 12 dated 20 August 2017, BRPD circular|
No. 15 dated 27 September 2017, BRPD circular no. 1 dated 20
February 2018, BRPD Circular no. 07 dated 21 June 2018, BRPD
Circular no 13 dated 18 October 2018, BRPD circular no. 3 dated
21 April 2019, BRPD circular no. 16 Dated 21 July 2020, BRPD
circular no. 52 Dated 20 October 2020, BRPD circular no. 19 dated
26 August 2021, BRPD circular no. 51 dated 29 December 2021,
BRPD circular no. 52 dated 29 December 2021, BRPD circular no.
03 dated 20 January 2022, BRPD circular no. 09 dated 7 April
2022, BRPD circular no. 07 dated 27 April 2022, BRPD circular no.
14 dated 22 June 2022, BRPD circular no. 51 dated 18 December
2022, the general provision at 0.25% to 2% under different|
categories of unclassified loans (good/standard and SMA loans)
has to be maintained regardless of objective evidence of
impairment. Also, provision for different categories of classified
loans (sub-standard, doubtful and bad and loss loans) has to be
provided at 20%, 50% and 100%, respectively, for loans and
advances depending on time past due.

Furthermore, as per BRPD circular no. 14 dated 23 September
2012 and BRPD circular no. 07 dated 21 June 2018, a general
provision at 1% is required to be provided for all off-balance sheet
exposures except on 'bills for collection' and 'guarantees' where the
counter guarantees have been issued by multilateral development|
bank (MDB)/international bank having BB rating grade '1'
equivalent outlined in the Guidelines on Risk Based Capital
Adequacy (Revised Regulatory Capital Framework for banks, in line
with Basel-lll).

As per BRPD circular no. 16 dated 21 July 2020, provision @ 5%,
20% on SMEF financing on SS and DF except medium enterprise
has to be maintained. Such provision policies are not specifically in
line with those prescribed by IFRS 9. Such provision policies are not
specifically in line with those prescribed by IFRS 9.

iv) Other comprehensive income

Treatment as per IFRS

Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guidelines

As per IAS 1 Presentation of Financial

comprehensive income statements.

Statements, other

comprehensive income is a component of financial statements or the|
elements of other comprehensive income are to be included in single

Bangladesh Bank has issued templates for financial statements
which is followed by all banks. The templates of financial
statements issued by Bangladesh Bank neither include Other
Comprehensive Income nor the elements of Other Comprehensive
Income allowed to be included in a single Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI) statement. As such, the bank does not prepare Other
Comprehensive Income statement. However, elements of OCI, if|
any, are shown in the Statement of Changes in Equity.
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v) Financial instruments - presentation and disclosure

Treatment as per IFRS Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guidelines
some disclosure and presentation requirements of IFRS 7 Financial||In several cases, Bangladesh Bank guideline categorize, recognise,
Instruments: Disclosures and IAS 32 Financial Instruments:{|measure and present financial instruments differently from those

Presentation cannot be made in the financial statements. prescribed in IFRS 9: Financial Instruments.
vi) Repo and reverse repo transactions
Treatment as per IFRS Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guidelines

As per IFRS 9, when an entity sells a financial asset and||As per DOS Circular letter no. 6, dated 15 July 2010, and
simultaneously enters into an agreement to repurchase the asset (or a|[subsequent clarification in DOS Circular no. 03, dated 30 January
similar asset) at a fixed price on a future date (repo), the arrangement|[2012 and DOS circular no. 2, dated 23 January 2013, when a bank
is treated as a loan, and the underlying asset continues to be||sells a financial asset and simultaneously enters into an agreement
recognised at amortised cost in the entity's financial statements. The||to repurchase the asset (or a similar asset) at a fixed price on a
difference between selling price and repurchase price will be treated||future date (repo or stock lending), the arrangement is accounted
as interest expense. The same rule applies to the opposite side of the||for as a normal sales transaction, and the financial assets are de-
transaction (reverse repo). recognised in the seller’s book and recognised in the buyer's book.
However, as per DMD circular letter no. 7, dated 29 July 2012, non-
primary dealer banks are eligible to participate in the Assured
Liquidity Support (ALS) programme, whereby such banks may enter
collateralised repo arrangements with Bangladesh Bank. Here, the
selling bank accounts for the arrangement as a loan, thereby
continuing to recognise the asset.

vii) Financial guarantees

Treatment as per IFRS Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guidelines

As per IFRS 9: Financial Instruments, financial guarantees are||As per BRPD circular no. 14, dated 25 June 2003, financial
contracts that require an entity to make specified payments to||guarantees, such as Letter of Credit and Letter of Guarantee should
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs if a specified debtor fails to||be treated as off balance sheet items. No liability is recognised for
make payment when due, in accordance with the term of debt||the guarantee, except the cash margin.

instruments. Financial guarantee liabilities are recognised initially at
their fair value, and the initial fair value is amortised over the life of|
the financial guarantee. The financial guarantee liability is
subsequently carried at the higher of this amortised amount, and the
loss allowance determined as expected credit loss under IFRS 9.
Financial guarantees are prescribed to be included within other

liabilities.
viii) Cash and cash equivalents
Treatment as per IFRS Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guidelines
Cash and cash equivalent items should be reported as cash item as||Some cash and cash equivalent items, such as money at call and
per IAS 7: Statement of Cash Flows. on short notice, treasury bills, Bangladesh Bank bills and prize

bonds are not shown as cash and cash equivalents. Money at call
and on short notice is shown separately in the balance sheet.
Treasury bills, Bangladesh Bank bills and prize bonds are shown
under investment in the balance sheet. However, in the cash flow
statement, money at call and short notice and prize bonds are
shown as cash and cash equivalents beside cash-in-hand, balance
with Bangladesh Bank and other banks.

ix) Non-banking assets

Treatment as per IFRS Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guidelines

There is no particular/specific guideline about non-banking assets in|{As per BRPD circular no. 22, dated 20 September 2021, there is a
IFRS. separate balance sheet item titled as non-banking asset that exists

in the standard format.

x) Cash flow statement

Treatment as per IFRS Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guidelines

As per IAS 7: Statement of Cash Flows, cash flow statement can be|[As per BRPD circular no. 14, dated 25 June 2003, the cash flow
prepared either in direct method or indirect method. The presentation||statement is a mix of both the direct and indirect methods.

is selected to present these cash flows in a manner that is most
appropriate for the business or industry. The method selected is
applied consistently.

xi) Balance with Bangladesh Bank

Balance with Bangladesh Bank should be treated as other asset, as it||Balance with Bangladesh Bank is treated as cash and cash
is not available for use in day to day operations, as per IAS 7:|lequivalents.

Statement of Cash Flows.
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xii) Presentation of intangible asset

Treatment as per IFRS

Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guidelines

Intangible assets must be identified and recognised, and the
disclosure must be given as per IAS 38: Intangible Assets.

Intangible assets are shown in fixed assets, including premises and
furniture and fixtures, as there is no specific regulation for
intangible assets in BRPD circular no. 14, dated 25 June 2003.

xiii) Off balance sheet items

Treatment as per IFRS

Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guidelines

As per IFRS, there is no requirement for disclosure of off balance sheet|
items on the face of the balance sheet.

As per BRPD circular no. 14, dated 25 June 2003, off balance
sheet items, e.g. Letter of Credit, Letter of Guarantee and
Acceptance must be disclosed separately on the face of the
balance sheet.

xiv) Disclosure of appropriation of profit

Treatment as per IFRS

Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guidelines

There is no requirement to show appropriation of profit on the face of
statement of comprehensive income.

As per BRPD circular no. 14, dated 25 June 2003, appropriation of|
profit should be disclosed on the face of profit and loss account.

xv) Loans and advances/investments net of provision

Treatment as per IFRS

Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guidelines

As per IFRS 9, loans and advances/investments should be presented
net of provision.

As per BRPD circular no. 14, dated 25 June 2003, provision on
loans and advances/investments are presented separately as
liability and cannot be netted-off against loans and advances.

xvi) Recognition of interest in suspense
Treatment as per IFRS Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guidelines

Loans and advances to customers are generally classified at||As per BRPD circular no. 14, dated 23 September 2012, once a
amortised cost as per IFRS 9, and interest income is recognised in the||loan is classified as Sub-standard, Doubtful BL (special reason),
profit and loss account by using the effective interest rate method tof|interest accrued on such loans are not allowed to be recognised as
the gross carrying amount over the term of the loan. Once a loan|fincome, rather the corresponding amount needs to be credited to
subsequently becomes credit-impaired, the entity shall apply the|lan interest in suspense account which is presented as other
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of these loans and||liability in the balance sheet.
advances.

xvii) Provision on undrawn loan commitments

Treatment as per IFRS

Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guidelines

As per IFRS 9, the bank shall recognise credit losses on undrawn loan
commitments, such as Letter of Credit (L/C), Letter of Guarantee
(L/G), etc., as the present value of the difference between the
contractual cash flow that are due by the customer if the commitment
is drawn down and the cash flows that the bank expects to receive.

As per BRPD Circular no. 07, dated 21 June 2018, and BRPD
Circular no. 14, dated 23 September 2012, the bank is required to
maintain a provision at 1% rate against off balance sheet
exposures (which includes all types of undrawn loan commitments).

xviii) Name of the financial statements

Treatment as per IFRS

Treatment adopted as per BB circulars and guidelines

As per IAS 1, complete set of financial statements consists statement
of financial position, statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statement of
cash flows and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

The forms of financial statements and directives for preparation
thereof of the bank companies in Bangladesh are guided by BRPD
Circular no. 14, dated 25 June 2003 and subsequent amendments
thereof from time to time. BRPD circular no. 14 states the
statement of financial position as balance sheet and statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as profit and loss
account.

2.2.2 Summary statement of compliance with IFRSs
Ref. Name of the standards Status

IFRS-1 First-Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards Not applicable
IFRS-2 Share-based Payment Not applicable
IFRS-3 Business Combinations Complied
IFRS-4 Insurance Contracts Not applicable
IFRS-5 Non-current assets Held for Sale and Discounted Operations Not applicable
IFRS-6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources Not applicable
IFRS-7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures Complied *
IFRS-8 Operating Segments Complied *
IFRS-9 Financial Instruments Complied *
IFRS-10 Consolidated Financial Statements Complied
IFRS-11 Joint Arrangements Not applicable
IFRS-12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities Complied
IFRS-13 Fair Value Measurement Complied
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2.3

2.4
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IFRS-14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts Not applicable

IFRS-15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers Complied

IFRS-16 Leases Complied
I1AS-1 Presentation of Financial Statements Complied *
IAS-2 Inventories Not applicable
IAS-7 Statement of Cash Flows Complied *
1AS-8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors Complied
IAS-10 Events after the Reporting Period Complied
IAS-12 Income taxes Complied
IAS-16 Property, Plant and Equipment Complied
IAS-19 Employee Benefits Complied
IAS-20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance Complied
IAS-21 The Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchanges Rates. Complied
1AS-23 Borrowing Cost Complied
IAS-24 Related Party Disclosures Complied
1AS-26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans Not applicable
1AS-27 Separate Financial Statements Complied
1AS-28 Investment in Associates and Joint Venture Complied
1AS-29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies Not applicable
IAS-32 Financial Instruments: Presentation Complied *
IAS-33 Earnings Per Share Complied
IAS-34 Interim Financial Reporting Complied
IAS-36 Impairment of Assets Complied
IAS-37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets Complied
1AS-38 Intangible Assets Complied *
IAS-40 Investment Property Not applicable
IAS-41 Agriculture Not applicable

* Complied to the extent possible subject to compliance to Bangladesh Bank guidelines in this respect.
** Complied in the preparation of interim financial reports of the Bank.

Standards issued but not yet effective
A number of new standards and amendments to standards are issued but not yet effective for annual periods beginning after 01 January 2022

and earlier application is permitted. However, the Bank has not adopted early the following new or amended standards in preparing these
financial statements.

A) Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction (Amendments to IAS 12)
B) Other standards: The following new and amended standards are not expected to have a significant impact on the bank's standalone and
consolidated financial statements:

- Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to IAS 1)

- IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

- Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2)
- Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8)

- Lease liability in sale and leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16)

Going concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern assumption that the Bank will continue in operation over the
foreseeable future. The Bank has neither any intention nor any legal or regulatory compulsion to liquidate or curtail materially the scale of any of
its operations. Key financial parameters (including liquidity, profitability, asset quality, provision sufficiency and capital adequacy) of the bank
continued to demonstrate a healthy trend for a couple of years. The rating outlook of the bank, as reported by all the rating agencies is ‘Stable’.

The management do not see any issue with respect to going concern due to recent pandemic COVID-19. Besides, the management is not aware
of any other material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the bank's ability to continue as a going concern.

Materiality and aggregation .

Each material item considered by the management as significant has been displayed separately in the financial statements. No amount has
been set off, unless the Bank has a legal right to set off the amounts and intends to settle on net basis. Income and expenses are presented on a
net basis only when permitted by the relevant accounting standards.

Comparative information
Accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Bank and are consistent with those used in the previous year. Comparative
information is rearranged wherever necessary to conform with the current presentation.
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2.7

2.8

2.9

210

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Bangladeshi Taka (BDT), which is the bank's functional currency. The functional currency of the Bank's
Off-shore Banking Unit (OBU) and one of the Bank's subsidiaries, namely BRAC SAAJAN Exchange Limited, is in United States Dollar (USD) and
Great Britain Pound (GBP), respectively. Financial statements of the above-mentioned unit and subsidiary have been translated into the
presentation currency, i.e. Bangladeshi Taka (BDT), following the guidelines of IAS 21: The Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates. The
functional and presentation currency of other subsidiaries and associates is in Bangladeshi Taka (BDT). Except as indicated, figures have been
rounded-off to the nearest Taka.

Reporting period
These financial statements cover one calendar year - from 01 January to 31 December 2022.

Basis of measurement of elements of financial statements
The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared on historical cost basis except for the following:

- Government Treasury Bills and Bonds designated as ‘Held for Trading (HFT)' at present value using marked to market with gains, if any,
credited to revaluation reserve.
- Government Treasury Bills and Bonds designated as ‘Held to Maturity (HTM)' at present value using amortization concept.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates. It also requires disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Provisions and
accrued expenses are recognized in the financial statement in line with the IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. However, the estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis and the revision is recognized in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
Significant areas where management requiring the use of estimate and judgment:

a) Provision for loans and advances, investments and leases for future impairment
b) Useful life of fixed assets and Right of use of assets (RoU) as per IFRS 16
¢) Remeasurement gain/(loss) of defined benefit obligation and plan assets

d) Deferred Tax assets/liabilities

e) Provision for gratuity fund

Right of use of assets (RoU) as per IFRS 16

g) Lease liabilities

h) Impairment testing of goodwill

i) Provision for taxation

j) Fair value determination of unquoted investments/shares

Foreign currency transactions

Mark-to-market valuation of foreign currency transaction

The treasury back-office values all outstanding positions (Spot and Forward including on and off balance sheet items) at the current market rate
to determine the current market value of these positions. This exercise also provides the profitability of the outstanding contracts. The treasury
back office gathers the market rates from an independent source i.e. other than traders (Reuters/Bloomberg, BAFEDA, calling other bank back
offices) of the same organization which is required to avoid any conflict of interest. Revaluation is done daily and the profit and loss impact is
adjusted accordingly.

Translation of foreign currency operations
The results of financial statements of any foreign operation (including subsidiaries, off-shore banking unit, etc.) whose functional currency is not
Bangladeshi Taka are translated into Bangladeshi Taka as follows:

a. assets and liabilities for each statement of balance sheet have been translated at the closing rate on the date of the balance sheet.
b. income and expenses for the profit and loss account have been translated at average rate.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in OCI and accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve, except to the extent that the
translation difference is allocated to NCI.

Exchange rates .
The assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2022 in foreign currencies have been converted to BDT at the following rates:
Name of Currencies 2022 2021
USD 1= BDT 103.30 85.80
SGD 1=BDT 76.60 63.41
GBP 1=BDT 124.43 115.70
AUD 1= BDT 69.44 62.33
EUR 1=BDT ) 110.01 97.12
CHF 1= BDT 111.74 93.71
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2.13

2.14

2.14

JPY 1=BDT 0.77 0.75
CAD 1= BDT 75.97 67.12
AED 1= BDT 28.13 23.36
CNY 1=BDT 14.84 13.46

Translation reserve in separate financial statements
The functional currency of the Bank's Off-shore Banking Unit (OBU) is in United States Dollar (USD). So, translation reserve has been generated in
separate financial statements for translating offshore banking operations in bank's presentation currency (BDT).

Translation reserve in consolidated financial statements

The functional currency of one of the Bank's subsidiaries BRAC SAAJAN Exchange Limited is in Great Britain Pound (GBP). As a result, in
consolidated financial statements translation reserve includes the balances of separate financial statements as well as the balances for
translating SAAJAN's GBP operations to bank's presentation currency (BDT).

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

The Bank recognises provisions only when it has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and when a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.
No provision is recognised for-

a. Any possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the bank; or

b.  Any present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because-
i) It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or
ii) A reliable estimate of the amount of obligation cannot be made.

Such obligations are recorded as contingent liabilities. These are assessed continually and only that part of the obligation for which an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is probable, is provided for, except in extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be
made.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statement since these may result in the recognition of income that may never be realised.
However, due to regulations of Bangladesh Bank (Central Bank of Bangladesh) and Bank Company Act, 1991, as amended, all items of such
contingent assets/liabilities are shown as off balance sheet items under balance sheet of the bank as a separate section.

Statement of changes in equity

Statement of Changes in Equity has been prepared in accordance with IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” and following the guidelines
of Bangladesh Bank BRPD circular no.14 dated 25 June 2003.

Cash flow statement

Cash Flow Statement is prepared principally in accordance with IAS 7 “ Statement of Cash Flows” under the guidelines of BRPD circular no.14
dated 25 June 2003. The Cash Flow Statement shows the structure of and changes in cash and cash equivalents during the year. It Cash Flows
during the period have been classified as operating activities, investing activities and financing activities.

Basis of preparation of liquidity statement
The liquidity statement of assets and liabilities as on the reporting date has been prepared on residual maturity term as per the following basis:

a) Balances with other bank and financial institutions, money at call and short notice etc. are on the basis of their maturity term.
b) Investments are on the basis of their residual maturity term.

¢) Loans and advances are on the basis of their repayment/ maturity schedule.

d) Fixed assets are on the basis of their useful life.

e) Other assets are on the basis of their adjustment.

f)  Borrowing from other banks, financial institutions and agents as per their maturity/ repayment term.

g) Deposits and other accounts are on the basis of their maturity term and behavioural past trend.

h)  Other long term liability on the basis of their maturity term.

i)  Provisions and other liabilities are on the basis of their settlement.

Changes in accounting policies, estimates and errors -

IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors , states that the effect of a change in accounting policy and correction of
errors, if material, is to be applied retrospectively, and change in an accounting estimate is to be applied prospectively. The carrying amount of
assets, liabilities, or equity may be changed following a change in accounting estimates in the period of the change. The bank followed the same
accordingly.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in these financial statements except the
recognition of defined benefit obligation and plan assets relating to the gratuity fund on the balance sheet of the Bank from 2018. The net effect
in opening balance for such recognition has been charged in profit and loss considering the effect as immaterial as per IAS - 8.
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3.1.2

Assets and the basis of their valuation

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and cash at bank (regardless of
maturity), highly liquid interest bearing investment/securities with original maturities of less than three month. Cash flow statement is prepared
in accordance with IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows. However cash flows from operating activities have been presented according to the format
mentioned in BRPD circular no. 14 dated 25 June 2003.

Investments (Categorized and reported as per Bangladesh Bank)

Investment in securities

All investment securities are initially recognised at cost, including acquisition charges associated with the investment. Premiums are amortised
and discount accredited, using the effective yield method, and are taken to discount income. The valuation method of marking-to-market for
investments used are:

Held To Maturity (HTM)

Investments which have fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the group has the positive intent and ability to held to maturity,
other than those that meet the definition of 'Held at amortised cost others' are classified as held to maturity. These investment are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, less any provision for impairment in value. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium in acquisition. Any gain or loss on such investments is recognised in the statement of income when the investment is de-recognised or
impaired.

Held For Trading (HFT)

Investments classified in this category are acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing - in short trading or if designated as
such by the management. After initial recognition, investments are measured at market value, and any change in the fair value is recognised in

the statement of income for the period in which it arises. Transaction costs, if any, are not added to the value of investments at initial
recognition.

Revaluation of government securities

According to DOS Circular no. 05, dated 26 May 2008, DOS Circular no. 05, dated 28 January 2009 and DOS Circular no. 02, dated 19 January
2012, HFT securities are revalued once each week using marking-to-market concept, and the HTM securities are amortised once a year
according to Bangladesh Bank guidelines. HTM securities are also revaluated if they are reclassified to HFT category with the Board's approval.

Investment in quoted securities
These securities are bought and held primarily for the purpose of selling them in the future or holding for dividend income, which are reported at
cost. Unrealised gains are not recognised in the profit and loss statement. But required provisions are kept for diminution in value of investment.

Investment in mutual funds

The Department of off-site Supervision (DOS) of Bangladesh Bank vide its circular letter no. 03 dated 12 March 2015 directed that investment in
mutual fund (closed end) will be revalued at lower of cost and (higher of marker value and 85% of NAV). Provision should be made for any loss
arising from diminution in value of investment on portfolio basis; otherwise investments are recognized at cost.

Investment in unquoted securities

Investment in unlisted securities is reported at cost under cost method. Adjustment is given for any shortage of book value over cost for
determining the carrying amount of investment in unlisted securities. As per Bangladesh Bank DOS Circular no. 04, dated 24 November 2011,
provision for diminution in value of investment was made by netting off unrealised gain (loss) of shares from market price/book value less cost
price.

Besides, the Bank complied with Bangladesh Bank BRPD Circular no. 14, dated 25 June 2003, as follows, “All investments in shares and
securities (both dealing and investment) should be revalued at the year end. The quoted shares should be valued as per market price in the
stock exchange(s) and unquoted shares as per book value of the last audited balance sheet. Provisions should be made for any loss arising from
diminution in value of investment.”

Summary of recognition and measurement basis has been shown as under:

. e M rement after .
Investment Class Initial Recognition e . .t At Recording of changes
Recognition
i i L fit and | C, gain to
Govemment Treasury Bills (HFT) Cost Marking to Market/ fair oss to F)ro it and loss A/C, gai
value revaluation reserve
Amortised gain to revaluation reserve
Government Treasury Bills (HTM) Cost Amortised cost TeClsn! ’ EL
) and loss to profit and loss
Marking to Market/ fair Loss to profit and loss A/C, gain to
Government Treasury Bonds (HFT) Cost € v % p : NCg
value revaluation reserve
. Amortised gain to revaluation reserve
Government Treasury Bonds (HTM) Cost Amortised cost 3
and loss to profit and loss
Zero Coupon Bond Cost Cost N/A
Prize Bond and Other Bond Cost Cost N/A
Debentures Cost Cost Profit and Loss Account
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Un-quoted Shares (ordinary) Cost Low.er e Profit and Loss Account
audited account
Quated Shares (ordinary) Cost quer of cost or market Loss (net off gain) to I.Drofrt ar.ld Loss
price at balance sheet date |Account but no unrealized gain
Provision for unrealised loss (net) to
Mutual Fund (open-end) Cost Lower of cost or 95% of NAV |profit and loss account but no
unrealised gain booking.
Vutual Fund (closedend) cout Lower of GeEt or (hghBF of Prc;?/tlsm; lft)r unreallsidblotss (net) to
market value or 85% of NAV) prolf a.n os§ accourl ULRO
. unrealised gain booking.

3.1.3 Loans and advances

a)
b)

c)
b)

Loans and advances are stated in the balance sheet on the gross basis.

Interest on loans and advances is calculated daily on accrual basis for all loans accounts but charged in client statements monthly,
quarterly and installment date based on product type.

Commission and discounts on bills purchased and discounted are recognized at the time of realization.

Provision for loans and advances is made on the basis of period-end review by the management following instructions contained in
Bangladesh Bank BRPD Circular no. 14, dated 23 September 2012, BRPD circular no. 15, dated 23 September 2012, BRPD Circular no.
19, dated 27 December 2012, BRPD Circular no. 05, dated 29 May 2013, BRPD Circular no. 16, dated 18 November 2014, BRPD Circular
no. 08, dated 02 August 2015, BRPD Circular no. 12, dated 20 August 2017, BRPD Circular no. 15, dated 27 September 2017, BRPD
Circular no. 01, dated 20 February 2018, BRPD Circular no. 07, dated 21 June 2018, BRPD Circular no 13, dated 18 October 2018 and
BRPD Circular no. 03, dated 21 April 2019, BRPD circular no. 52 Dated 20 October 2020, BRPD circular no. 16 dated 21 July 2020, BRPD
circular No: 56 dated 10 December 2020, BRPD circular No: 14 dated 22 June 2022, BRPD circular No: 51 dated 18 December 2022.
Provisions and interest suspense are separately shown under other liabilities as per the First Schedule of the Bank Company Act 1991
(amended up to 2018). The rates of provision for loans and advances are given below:

Unclassified Classified
Type of Loans and Advances Special Mention Substandard
Standard
: nda Account (SMA) (sS) Doubtful (DF) | Bad and Loss (BL)

Consumer financing - House building 1% 1% 20% 50% 100%
Consumer financing - Loans for professionals 2% 2% 20% 50% 100%
Co.ns.umer fmancmg: Other than house 2% 2% 20% 50% 100%
building and professionals

Loans to BHs/ MBs against share etc. 2% 2% 20% 50% 100%
Small and medium enterprise (Medium) 0.25% 0.25% 20% 50% 100%

- = Mioto,

Small and medium enterprise (Cottage, Micro 0.25% 0.25% 5% 20% 100%
Small)

Short term Agriculture/ Micro credit 1% 1% 5% 5% 100%
Credit Card 2% 2% 20% 50% 100%
All others 1% 1% 20% 50% 100%
Off Balance Sheet exposure 1% N/A N/A N/A N/A-

Interest on classified loans and advances is kept in a suspense account as per BRPD circular no. 27, dated 31 August 2010 and recognised
as income on realisation, as per BRPD circular no. 14 and 15, dated 23 September 2012. Interest is not charged on bad and loss loans as
per thgz guidelines of Bangladesh Bank. Records of such interest amounts are kept in separate accounts.

Write off Loans and Advance: Loans and advances are written-off to the extent that (i) there is no realistic prospect of recovery and (ii)
against which legal cases are filed and classified as bad and loss, as per BRPD circular no. 02, dated 13 January 2003 and 13, dated 07
November 2013. These write-offs however will not undermine/affect the claim amount against the borrower. Detailed memorandum
records for all such write-off accounts are meticulously maintained and followed up.

3.1.4 Fixed assets including premises, furniture and fixtures

A. Property, plant and equipment (PPE)
Property, plant and equipment (PPE) include all type of tangible assets i.e. land, office floor space, furniture & fixtures, office equipments, IT
hardware and motor vehicles etc.

Recognition and measurement
All fixed assets including land are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, as per IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment. Right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the entity; and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
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The cost of the items of property, plant and equipment comprises:

i) any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner

intended by the management.

i)  any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner

intended by the management.

iii) the initial estimate of the cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, the obligation for which an
entity incurs either when the item is acquired or as consequence of having used the item during a particular period of purpose other than to

produce during that period.

Subsequent costs

Subsequent costs of enhancement of existing assets are recognised as an addition to the asset, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
expenses are charged to the profit and loss account during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of PPE

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation is charged on straight-line basis. In case of acquisition of fixed assets, depreciation is charged from the
.month of acquisition, whereas no depreciation on assets disposed-off is charged from the month of disposal. Asset category-wise depreciation

rates are as follows:

Category of assets BRAC Bank BRAC EPL BRAC EPL Stock BRAC Saajan bKash Limited
Limited Investments Limited || Brokerage Limited Exchange Limited

Furniture and fixture 10% 10%-20% 12.5% 10% 20%
Building 2.5% 5% 2% - -
Office equipment 20% 10%-20% 20% 10% 20%
IT equipment - Hardware 20% 25% - - 20%
Isquipment- PG, Laptop, 33.33% 33.33% 25% 33.33% 33.33%
UPS, Printer and Scanner
IT equipment - Software 10%-20% 33.33% 33.33% 20% 20%
Motor vehicles 20% 20% 20% - 20%
‘?vf;xr(:: decoration/ renovation 10% 15% 15% 10% 20%

The consolidated financial statements of BRAC Bank for the year ended 31 December 2022 have been prepared applying uniform depreciation
policy in compliance with IFRS 10 " Consolidated Financial Statements".

Gain or loss on disposal of PPE

Sale price of fixed assets are determined on the basis of fair value of the assets. Gain or loss on sale of assets are recognised in the profit and
loss account as per provision of |AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment.

Impairment of PPE

At each balance sheet date, the bank assesses whether there is any indication that the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. If any such indication exists, the Bank should estimate the recoverable amount of the asset. An asset is carried at more than its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount exceeds the amount to be recovered through use or sale of the asset. If this is the case, the asset is
described as impaired and impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account unless the asset is carried at revalued
amount in accordance with IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, in which case any impairment loss of a revalued asset should be treated as
revaluation decrease under the accounting standard. No impairment loss was recognised up to the reporting period in separate financial
statement, as no such indication existed as on the balance sheet date.

B. Intangible assets
Software

Software acquired by the bank is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Subsequent expenditure on
software assets is capitalised only when it increases future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All expenditure
is expensed as incurred. Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the software, from the
date that it is available for use, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in
the asset. The estimated useful life of software is five to ten years. Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each

financial year-end and adjusted, if appropriate.

License

Value of the license is recognised at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill that arises upon the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess of the fair value of the purchase consideration over the fair value
of the BRAC Bank group's share of the assets acquired and the liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed on the date of the acquisition and is
measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses in accordance with IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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Impairment of intangible assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful life, like goodwill etc., are tested for impairment at the end of each year. As per IAS 36 Impairment, any
intangible assets with definite useful life are first reviewed for any indication of impairment. If any indication exists, then the impairment test is
carried out.

C. IFRS 16 "Leases" and its relevant assumptions and disclosures

IFRS 16: "Leases" has come into force on 1 January 2019, as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB). BRAC
Bank applied IFRS 16 using modified retrospective approach where the bank measured the lease liability at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted it using the bank's incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application, and recognised a right-of-use asset
at the date of the initial application on a lease by lease basis.

Right-of-use assets

The Bank recognises right-of-use assets at the date of initial application of IFRS 16. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. The right-of-use assets are presented under property, plant and equipment.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the bank recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term using incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. Lease liability is measured by increasing the carrying amount to
reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments, and re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect
any reassessment or lease modifications.

Interest on the lease liability in each period during the lease term shall be the amount that produces a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the lease liability.

Short-term leases and leases of low value assets

The Bank has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low value assets and short-term leases, i.e. for which
the lease term ends within 12 months of the date of initial application. The Bank recognises lease payments associated with these leases as an
expense.

The contracts for premises with all branches, head office, regional offices, data centers and disaster recovery centers are considered for lease
calculation.

Accounting of lease modification

IFRS 16 defines a modification as a change in the scope of a lease, or the consideration for a lease, that was not part of the original terms and
conditions of the lease. Any change that is triggered by a clause that is already part of the original lease contract (including changes due to a
market rent review clause or the exercise of an extension option) is not regarded as a modification.

Gain or loss on termination of lease agreements

As per IFRS-16, if the lease is modified to terminate the right of use of one or more underlying assets or to shorten the contractual lease term,
the bank (lessee) remeasures the lease liability at the effective date of the modification using a revised discount rate. Furthermore, it decreases
the carrying amount of the right-of-use assets to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease. Any gain or loss relating to the partial or full
termination is recognised in profit or loss.

D. Capital work-in-progress (CWIP)

Costs incurred, but if the related asset is yet not ready or available for use as intended by management, are recognised as capital work-in-
progress and disclosed as a part of fixed assets. Once the underlying asset is ready and available for use, it is transferred to fixed assets.
However, no depreciation is charged on CWIP.

E. Investment properties

Investment property is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both and the future economic benefits that are associated with the
investment property but not held for sale in the ordinary course of business. Investment property is accounted for under cost model in the
financial statements. Accordingly, after recognition as an asset, the property is carried at its cost, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss.

Other assets and basis of their measurement
Other assets include mainly all other financial assets, interest and other unrealised income receivable, advance for operating expenditure and
stocks of stationery and stamps etc.

a. Interest receivables

Interest receivable is the amount of interest that has been earned but has not yet been received in cash. Interest on loans and advances is
calculated and accrued on a daily product basis but charged to customer accounts in different frequency based on product nature. The accrued
but uncharged interest portion is reported as interest receivables on reporting date. Interest receivables is recognized only when the
unconditional right to receive the cash flows of the loans and advances is established.
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b. Reporting investment in subsidiaries and associates in separate financial statements
In accordance with the IAS 27 "Separate Financial Statements", an entity may choose any of the following methods to account for investment in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures in its separate financial statements:

- atcost;
- in accordance with IFRS 9; or
- using the equity method as described in IAS 28;

BRAC Bank adopted IFRS 9 Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) method for accounting equity investment in subsidiaries and
associates since June 2020. As all of the investment are in unquoted investment, management used net assets value of the each investment as

per the financial statements of the entity every year as fair value because if buyer offer any price of our investments, they will refer to NAV as
reference price.

Accordingly, below cumulative fair value gain/(loss) has been directly recognised in equity in the separate financial statements of the bank till to
date 31 December 2022.

Name of the subsidiaries and || BBL's investment Net asset value of BBL's share of net Gross fallr value Gain/(loss) net of
associates at cost investee asset gain/(loss) deferred tax

BRAC EPL Investment Ltd. 2,891,704,014 1,302,350,935 1,301,639,222 (1,590,064,792) (1,351,555,073)
‘EtZAC L Sieak Brakorgs 1,344,147,500 1,457,088870(  1,311,371,003 (32,776,497) (27,860,022)
bKash Ltd. 168,921,800 30,602,346,146 10,937,169,476 10,768,247,676 9,153,010,525
BRAC Saajan Exchange Ltd. 171,528,531 22,534,817 21,126,396 (150,402,135) (127,841,815)
BRAC IT Services Ltd. (biTS) 23,372,000 212,076,519 21,206,835 (2,165,165) (1,840,390)
Total 4,599,673,845 33,596,397,287 13,5692,512,932 8,992,839,087 7,643,913,224

3.2
321

3.2.2

For shareholding percentage, please refer to Note 1.6 "Summary of shareholding in subsidiaries and associates". Economic shareholding
percentage of bKash 35.74% has been used for BBL's share of net asset considering dilution for bKash's preference shares having rights like

ordinary shares.

c. Reporting investment in subsidiaries and associates in consolidated financial statements
Investment in subsidiary is consolidated in the consolidated financial statements considering as a single economic entity in accordance with the
IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements and IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements respectively.

Investment in associate is recognised in the consolidated financial statements under equity method as per IAS 28 Investments in Associates and

Joint Ventures.

The summary of accounting of equity investment in subsidiaries and associate both in consolidated and separate financial statements is as

follows:

Investment class

Initial recognition

Measurement after recognition

Recording of changes

Investment in subsidiary

Cost

Fair value through other comprehensive
income in separate financial statements
and equity method less accumulated
impairment, if any, in consolidated
financial statements.

Impairment loss is adjusted
automatically in OCI due to fair value
accounting. Goodwill impairment is
recognised in profit and loss in
consolidated financial statements.

Investment in associate

Cost

Fair value through other comprehensive
income in separate financial statements
and equity method less accumulated
impairment, if any, in consolidated

Impairment loss is adjusted
automatically in OCI due to fair value
accounting. The share of post
acquisition income is recognised in

financial statements. consolidated profit and loss account.

Liabilities and provisions

Borrowings from other banks, financial institutions and agents

Borrowings from other banks, financial institutions and agents include interest-bearing borrowings redeemable at call, on-demand and short-
term deposits lodged for periods of less than 6 months. These items are brought to account at the gross value of the outstanding balance which
includes accrued interest.

Deposits and other accounts

Deposits include non interest-bearing current deposit redeemable at call, interest bearing on-demand and short-term deposits, savings deposit
and term deposit lodged for periods from 3 months to 12 years. These items are brought to account at the gross value of the outstanding
balance which includes accrued interest.
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3.2.4

Other liabilities

Other liabilities comprise items such as provision for loans and advances, provision for interest receivables, provision for taxes, interest
suspense, accrued expenses. Other liability is recognised in the balance sheet according to the guideline of Bangladesh Bank, IAS and IFRS,
Income Tax Ordinance-1984 and internal policies of the Bank. Provisions and accrued expenses are recognised in the financial statements when
the Bank has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

a. Provision for loans and advances

Provision for loans and advances is created for covering the Bank from possible loan losses in the future. General provision is made on the
outstanding amount of loans and advances without considering the classification status following the prescribed rate of Bangladesh Bank.
Classified loans and advances of the Banks are categorised as Sub-Standard, Doubtful and Bad/Loss as per Bangladesh Bank guidelines. For
loans which are classified as sub-standard, doubtful or bad/loss, specific provision is created netting off security value and interest suspense
from the amount outstanding.

b. Provision for other assets

Other assets excluding investment in subsidiaries is subject to making provision based on their ageing as per Bangladesh Bank BRPD circular
no. 14 dated 25 June 2001 and BRPD circular no. 04 dated 12 April 2022. Full provision is kept on other assets which are outstanding for one
year or more or classified as Bad/Loss.

c. Provision for diminution in value of investments
Please refer to above note 3.1.2 for detail policies for recognition, measurement and provisioning of investment.

d. Provisions for off balance sheet items

No provision is kept on items of derivatives as there is no exposure on such gross value for the Bank. Provision for other off balance sheet items
made as per BRPD circular no. 14 dated 23 September 2012 and BRPD circular no. 7 dated 21 June 2018 except on 'bills for collection' and
'guarantees' where the counter guarantees have been issued by Multilateral Development Bank (MDB)/International Bank having BB rating
grade '1' equivalent outlined in the Guidelines on Risk Based Capital Adequacy (Revised Regulatory Capital Framework for banks in line with
Basel lll).

e. Provisions for nostro accounts

Provisions for unsettled transactions on nostro accounts made are reviewed on a monthly basis by management in Risk management meeting
(RMM) and certified by the Bank's external auditors on a semi-annual basis in accordance with Bangladesh Bank Foreign Exchange Policy
Department (FEPD) circular letter No. (FEPD)/01/2005-677 dated 13 September 2005. At the Balance Sheet date, Bank is not required to make
provision regarding un-reconciled debit entries which are outstanding for more than six (06) months in accordance with BRPD circular no. 04
dated 12 April 2022 .

f. Interest suspense

Classified loans and advances of the Banks are categorised as sub-standard, doubtful and bad/loss as per guidelines of Bangladesh Bank.
Interest accrued on Sub-Standard, Doubtful and Bad/Loss loans is transferred to interest suspense account and not considered as interest
income. This interest is recognised as interest income when it is realised in cash by the bank.

Share capital and shareholders' equity

Capital Management
The Bank has a capital management process in place to measure, deploy and monitor its available capital and assess its adequacy. This capital
management process aims to achieve four major objectives: exceed regulatory thresholds and meet longer-term internal capital targets, maintain

strong credit ratings, manage capital levels commensurate with the risk profile of the Bank and provide the Bank's shareholders with acceptable
returns.

Capital is managed in accordance with the Board-approved Capital Management Planning from time to time. Senior management develop the
capital strategy and oversee the capital management planning of the Bank. The Bank’s Finance, Treasury and Risk Management department are

key in implementing the Bank's capital strategy and managing capital. Capital is managed using both regulatory capital measures and internal
matrix.

a. Authorized capital
Authorized Capital is the maximum amount of share capital that the bank is authorised by its Memorandum of Association and Article of
Association to issue to shareholders.

b. Issued, Subscribed and Paid up capital
The issued share capital of the bank is the total nominal value of the shares of the bank which have been issued to shareholders and which
remain outstanding.

Paid up share capital represents total amount of shareholder capital that has been paid in full by the ordinary shareholders. Holders of ordinary
shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to vote at shareholders’ meetings. In the event of a
winding up of the Bank, ordinary shareholders rank after all other shareholders and creditors and are fully entitled to any residual proceeds of
liquidation.
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3.2.6

¢. Share Premium
Share premium is the capital that the Bank raises upon issuing shares that is in excess of the nominal value of the shares. The share premium

shall be utilised in accordance with provisions of section 57 of the Companies Act, 1994 and as directed by Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission in this respect.

d. Statutory reserve
The Bank is required to transfer at least 20% of its profit before tax to the Statutory Reserve in accordance with provisions of section 24 of the

Banking Companies Act, 1991. This is mandatory until such reserve is equal to the paid up capital together with amount in the share premium
account.

e. Dividend Equalization Fund

According to BRPD Circular No. 18, dated 20 October 2002, the equivalent amount of exceeding 20% cash dividend shall be kept separately
under Dividend Equalization Fund which shall be treated as permanent capital. On June 02, 2016 cash dividend @ 25% (Tk. 2.5 per share of 10
each) amounting to Taka 1,776,092,275 was approved by the shareholders in 17th Annual General Meeting and the cash dividend was paid
accordingly. Therefore the excess 5% cash dividend equivalent amounting to Taka 355,218,455 has been transferred to Dividend Equalization
Fund. This is treated as Common Equity Tier-1 (CET1)’ of the Bank.

f. Revaluation reserve on govt. securities

Revaluation reserve represents revaluation on Treasury bond (HFT and HTM) in accordance with the DOS circular no. 05, dated 26 May 2008
and DOS circular no. 05, dated 28 January 2009.

g. Remeasurements gain/(loss) of defined benefits liability (assets)

Remeasurement gain/loss arises from the actuarial valuation report carried out by professional actuary time to time on BRAC Bank Employees'
Gratuity Fund. The last actuarial valuation were carried out based on 31 December 2022 and actuarial gain/loss was recognised in equity as a
component of equity net of any deferred tax impact.

h. Non Controlling Interest

Non-controlling interest (NCI) in business is that portion of the profit or loss and net assets of a subsidiary attributable to equity interests that are
not owned, directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, by the parent. The portion of the NCI (percentage of ordinary shares owned by non-
controlling shareholders) in BRAC EPL Investments Limited, BRAC EPL Stock Brokerage Limited, bKash Limited and BRAC SAAJAN Exchange
Limited are 0.05%, 10%, 49%, and 6.25% respectively.

Off-balance sheet exposures and other commitments
Off Balance Sheet Items include various non-derivative financial instruments primarily letter of credit (L/C), letter of guarantee (L/G), acceptance
and endorsements, bills for collection etc. and various derivative instruments like forward contracts and currency rate swaps etc.

Revenue and expense recognition

Interest Income
Interest income is recognised on an accruals basis. Interest on loans and advances ceases to be taken into income when such advances are

classified, kept in interest suspense account. Interest on classified advances is accounted for on a realisation basis as per Bangladesh Bank
guidelines.

a. Interest and fees receivable on credit cards
Interest and fees receivable on credit cards are recognised on an accruals basis. Interest and fees cease to be taken into income when the
recovery of interest and fees is in arrear for over three months. Thereafter, interest and fees are accounted for on realisation basis.

b. Income on Bills purchased and discounted
Income on Bills purchased and Discounted is recognised on accrual basis.

Interest paid on deposits and borrowings etc.
Interest paid and other expenses are recognised on an accrual basis.

Investment income

Income on investments is recognised on an accruals basis. Investment income includes interest on treasury bills, treasury bonds, zero coupon,
shares, debentures etc.

Dividend Income on Shares

Dividend income from investment in shares is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established. It is recognised when:
a) Itis probable that the economic benefit associated with the transaction will flow to the entity; and

b) The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Commission, exchange and brokerage

The Bank earns fees and commission from a diverse range of services provided to its customers. These include fees and commission income
arising on financial and other services provided by the Bank including trade finance, credit cards, debit cards, passport endorsement, visa
processing, student service, loan processing, loan syndication, locker facilities and SMS banking etc. Fees and commission income arises on
services rendered by the Bank are recognised on a realisation basis.
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Other operating income
The profit on sale of fixed assets is determined as the difference between the carrying amount of the assets at the time of disposal and the

proceeds of disposal, and is recognised as an item of other income in the year in which the significant risks and rewards of ownership are
transferred to the buyer.

Employee benefits

a. Provident Fund (Defined Contribution Plan)

A "Defined Contribution Plan" is a post employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contribution into a separate entity and will have
no legal constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Provident Fund benefits are given to the staff of the Bank in accordance with the
registered Provident Fund Rules. The commissioner of Income Tax, Large Tax Payers Unit, Dhaka has approved the Provident Fund as a
recognized fund within the meaning of section 2(52) read with the provisions of part - B of the First Schedule of Income Tax ordinance 1984. The
fund is operated by a Board of Trustees consisting of employees of the Bank. All confirmed employees of the Bank are contributing 10% of their
basic salary as subscription of the fund. The bank also contributes equal amount of the employees' contribution to the fund. In addition, there
will be an option for a voluntary contribution of a maximum of 10% (at a multiple of 5%) from the monthly basic salary of the employee at the
time of payment thereof and will be paid to the Trustees account mentioned in Rule -13. Upon completion of 1 year of service length after
confirmation employees are entitled to 100% of employer's contribution along with his/her own contribution. Interest earned from the
investments is credited to the members' account on half yearly basis.

b. Gratuity Fund (Defined Benefit Plan)

Gratuity Fund benefits are given to the staff of the Bank in accordance with the approved Gratuity Fund rules. Employees are entitled to Gratuity
benefit after completion of minimum 05 (five) years of service in the Bank. The Gratuity is calculated on the basis of last basic pay and is payable
at the rate of one month's basic pay for every completed year of service, or in the case of service of 10 years or more at the rate of one and half
month's basic pay for every completed year of service. Beyond 5 years, 6 months and more shall be considered as full year of service. Gratuity
fund is a "Defined Benefit Plan" and contribution to Gratuity Fund is measured through the result of actuarial valuation of the fund.

The Bank’s net obligation in respect of gratuity is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the
current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets. The calculation of defined benefit obligations
is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, are recognised immediately in OCI. The Bank
determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account
any changes in the net defined benéefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense,
current service cost and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised as salaries and allowances in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or
loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

¢. Worker's Profit Participation Fund (WPPF)

Consistent with the industry practice and in accordance with section 11(1) of the Bank Company Act,1991 (as amended up to date) and
subsequent clarification given by Bank & Financial Institutions Division (BFID), Ministry of Finance, no provision has been made by bank in the
reporting period for WPPF.

d. Life Insurance
The objective of the scheme is to provide death or permanent disability benefits to its confirmed employees and on their families with a sum
equal to 50 times (in case of normal death) and 100 times (in case of accidental death) of the last drawn basic salary to the nominee.

e. Welfare Fund

The objective of the Employees’ Welfare Fund is to provide regular category employees from Officer Grade-1 to Senior Principal Officer of the
BRAC Bank incurring severe accidents during official job, extended illness (not less than 3 months), Education for Children, Marriage of Children
which costs would not be affordable by the employee and which are not covered by any other means. All regular confirmed employees of the
Bank are contributing monthly to the Fund according to the designation. The sum subscribed monthly from salaries of the employees is credited
separately in an “Employee Welfare Fund" as a liability of the Bank. There are at least 3 (three) members of Management Committee to manage
the fund. The Managing Director and CEO of the Bank is the Chairman of this committee and other 2 (two) members are nominated from the
regular category staff.

f. Hospitalization Insurance

The Bank has introduced a health insurance scheme to its confirmed employees and their respective dependents at rates provided in the health
insurance coverage policy.

g. Performance bonus
BRAC Bank provides performance bonus to the eligible employees every year. This bonus amount is being distributed among the employees

based on their performance rating and management decision. The bonus amount is paid annually, normally in the following year and the costs
are accounted for in the period to which it relates.
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h. Staff leave facilities

Annual leave

The provision for leave fare represents the current outstanding liability to employees at the balance sheet date. Leave Fare Assistance is a non-
recurring benefit for all permanent employees of the Bank who are entitled to annual leave. According to Bangladesh Bank policy all permanent
employees have to avail 15 consecutive days of mandatory leave and LFA will be given in this leave period.

Casual leave
Casual leave means a leave of absence for a very short period granted to an employee who may be unable to attend duty due to sudden illness
or urgent private affairs. Casual leave up to 5 working days can be granted per year. Not more than 3 days casual leave can be taken at a time.

Sick leave
Employee may avail Sick leave up to 14 calendar days in a year. Sick Leave for more than 2 days can be taken subject to submission of medical
certificates.

Paternity leave
All regular male employees are entitled to avail paternity leave for a period of 5 working days. Such leave can be taken before and/or after the
birth of the child only to look after his family and home. A male employee can avail this leave only twice during his service life.

Maternity leave

Female employees of the Bank are entitled to 6 (six) months of paid maternity leave. They will be eligible to avail this paid maternity leave after 6
(six) months of continuous service with the bank for the first 2 (two) children. A female employee who wants to avail maternity leave before
completion of 6 (six) months of continuous service with the bank will also be entitled to maternity leave but that would be without pay.

i. Subsidized Scheme - Staff Loan

Personal, House building and car loans are provided to the permanent staff at a subsidized rate. Criteria and details of types wise staff loan is
given below:

Personal Loan: A permanent staff can avail personal loan taking approval from department head and Head of HR subject to completion of a
specific service length and performance rating.

House building Loan: A permanent staff completing 5 year of service can avail house building loan taking approval from House Building Loan
Committee subject to performance rating and completed service length with BRAC Bank.

Car Loan: All confirmed staff at job grade from PO can avail staff car loan taking approval from department head and head of HR.

Taxation

Income tax on profit for the year comprises current and deferred tax and is based on the applicable tax law in Bangladesh. It is recognised in the
income statement as tax expense.

a. Current Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on taxable income for the year, based on tax rates and tax laws which are enacted at the reporting date,
including any adjustment for tax payable in previous periods. Current tax for current and prior periods are recognised as a liability or asset to the
extent that it is unpaid or refundable.

b. Deferred Tax
The Bank accounted for deferred tax as per IAS 12 Income Taxes. Deferred tax is accounted for any temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax base.

Deferred tax assets, including those related to the tax effects of income tax losses and credits available to be carried forward, are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences or unused tax
losses and credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. They are also recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on
investments and it is probable that temporary differences will reverse in future. Deferred tax assets associated with these interests are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary difference.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period(s) when the asset and liability giving rise
to them are realised or settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. The
measurement reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Bank, at the reporting date, recovers or settles the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Earnings Per Share

Earnings Per Share (EPS) has been computed by dividing the basic earning by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding at
the end of the year as per IAS 33 Earnings Per Share.

a. Basic earnings

This represents earnings for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders. Net profit after tax less preference dividend has been considered as
fully attributable to the ordinary shareholders.
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Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year
This represents the number of ordinary shares outstanding at the beginning of the year plus the number of ordinary shares issued during the

year multiplied by a time weighted factor. The time weighting factor is the number of days the specific shares are outstanding as a proportion of
the total number of days in the year.

The basis of computation of number of shares is in line with the provisions of IAS 33 Earnings Per Share. The logic behind this basis is, that the
bonus shares are issued to the existing shareholders without any consideration, and therefore, the number of shares outstanding is increased
without an increase in resources generating new earnings. In contrast, other shares were issued against consideration in cash or in kind, and
accordingly there is an increase in resource generating new earnings. Therefore, the total number of shares issued in particular year are
multiplied by a time weighting factor which is the number of days the specific shares were outstanding as a proportion of total number of days in
the period.

b. Diluted earnings per share
The objective of diluted earnings per share is consistent with that of basic earnings per share; that is, to provide a measure of the interest of
each ordinary share in the performance of an entity taking into account dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

As per IAS-33 "Earnings Per Share", the calculation of diluted earning per share does not assume conversion, exercise or other issue of potential
ordinary shares that would have an anti dilutive effect on earning per share. The bank has no dilutive instruments that is why we are not
considering the diluted earning per share.

Dividend policy
Dividend on ordinary shares is recognised as a liability and deducted from retained earnings when they are approved by shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Bank.

Dividend on ordinary shares for the year that is recommended by the Directors after the balance sheet date for approval of shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting are disclosed in Note - 51.5 to the financial statements.

Dividend Distribution Policy of BRAC Bank

Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) has made it mandatory for the listed Company to have their dividend distribution policy
and disclosed it in the Company's website and in the Annual Report. Accordingly, BRAC Bank has formulated the dividend distribution policy
which has been approved by Board of Directors in its 303rd meeting held on 20 September 2021. The policy is also available in bank's website
accordingly.

The BRAC Bank Ltd shall propose and declare dividend by ensuring compliance with the regulatory guidelines on dividend declaration and other
directives from Bangladesh Securities and exchange commission (BSEC), DSE, CSE, Bangladesh Bank, NBR and other applicable regulatory
requirements as well as aligned with company's business strategy.

Reconciliation of inter-bank/inter-branch account
Books of accounts with regard to interbank (in Bangladesh and outside Bangladesh) are reconciled on a monthly basis, and there are no material
differences which may affect the financial statements significantly.

Statement of Segment Reporting
As per IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”, an operating segment is a component of an entity:

i) That engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (include revenues and expenses relating to
transactions with other components of the same entity);

ii) Whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be
allocated to the segment and assess its performances, and

iii)  For which discrete financial information is available.

The Bank identifies segment based on its business segment as well as its subsidiaries. Business segment comprises SME, Retail, Corporate and
Treasury under Conventional banking. The Bank reviews the segments at the end of each reporting period to identify which of its segments are
reportable and disclose the related information for those reportable segments accordingly.

There are 4 (four) operating segments (SME, Retail, Corporate, and Treasury) on standalone basis as on 31 December 2022. Each operating
segment is reportable as per latest evaluation in accordance with IFRS 8: Operating segments.

In consolidated basis, each of subsidiary can be considered as operating segment in addition to segments on standalone basis. However, no
segment reporting has been made for subsidiaries as their audited financial statements have been appended with Bank's financial statements.

Related party disclosures
Related Party is a party related to an entity if:
i) Directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party controls, is controlled by, or is under control with, the company; has an
interest in the company, that gives it significant influence over the company; or has join control over the company;
i) The party is an associate (as defined in IAS 28 Investment in Associates and Joint ventures);
iii) The party is a joint venture in which the entity is a venture ( as per IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures);
iv) The party is member of the key management of personal of the entity or its parent;
v) The party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (i) or (iv);
vi) The party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (iv) or (v); or
vii) The party is post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the entity. or of any entity that is related party of the entity.
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Events after the Balance Sheet Date
As per IAS - 10 "Events after the Reporting Period" events after the reporting period are those events, favourable and unfavourable, that occur
between the end of the reporting period and the date when the financial statements are authorized for issue. Two types of event can be
identified:

a) Adjusting events after the reporting period which provide evidence of conditions which existed at the end of the reporting period; and

b) Non adjusting events after the reporting period, are those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period.

The details about the events after reporting period can be found at note - 51.5.

Risk management

Risk management is a discipline at the core of every enterprise and encompasses all activities that affect its risk profile. The Standards of Risk
Management, as taken up by the Bank for International Settlements (BIS) and, particularly, Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS),
has been applied by bank regulators across the world. The Central Bank of Bangladesh, i.e. Bangladesh Bank also issued revised risk
management guidelines in October 2018, which forms the basis of risk management of all scheduled banks in Bangladesh.

BRAC Bank Limited (BBL) rigorously follows a robust risk management framework across the organization and across all risk types, underpinned
by our culture and values where we follow the three lines of defense model. Each of the three lines of defense plays distinct roles in BBL's
broader governance framework. Bank's risk management framework is applied enterprise-wide and consists of three key elements: risk
governance, risk appetite, and risk management tools. Major risks for BBL include credit, market, liquidity and operational risk. In line with the
regulatory requirement and elevating its risk management function, BRAC Bank has established comprehensive risk management guidelines,
duly approved by its Board of Directors. The bank's risk management strategy is based on a thorough awareness of diverse risks, a disciplined
risk assessment process, and cautious measurement processes with ongoing monitoring. The bank is continuing to improve its risk management
systems, not only to meet regulatory obligations, but also to achieve superior risk-adjusted returns and optimal capital use while keeping the
organization's business objectives in mind. The bank handles risk across two strategic layers: the managerial layer and the operational layer, for
effective risk management. Risk discussions are held at those levels with the goal of identifying and measuring the impact of various types of
risk in core banking. Risk mitigation and viable solutions are examined, and conclusions are reached as a result.

A. Operating Environment

The Bank's operating environment during the year ended 2022 were impacted by a number of major global events such as continuation of COVID
19 related disruptions, start of Russia-Ukraine conflict, increase in fuel and commodity prices, strengthening of US Dollars, etc. Most of these
events also had significant impact on the local economic environment affecting the Bank's operations. From time to time, the Government of
Bangladesh and the local Central Bank (Bangladesh Bank) has issued various directives to manage impacts from these events which the Bank
has followed. Management on regular basis review and monitor the global and country specific macro-economic situation and factor these issues
into the decision making process.

. Credit risk management

Effective credit risk management is a vital component of a comprehensive risk management strategy and critical to any bank's long-term
sustainability. Considering key elements of credit risk, the bank has separate divisions for Corporate, SME, Retail and Credit Cards are entrusted
with the responsibility of maintaining effective relationship with customers, marketing credit products, exploring new business opportunities, etc.
For transparency in operations during the entire credit process, teams for i. Credit Approval, ii. Asset Operations, iii. Recovery Unit and Special
Asset Management have been set up.

The entire process involves relationship teams of respective asset portfolios (Retail, SME and Corporate) booking clients and the underwriting
team conducting thorough assessment before placing the facility for approval with the authority. Risk assessment includes borrower risk
analysis, industry risk analysis, financial risk analysis, security risk analysis, account performance risk analysis, AML risk analysis and
environmental & social risk analysis of the customer. Post-approval, the Credit Administration Department ensures compliance with all legal
formalities, completion of documentation, including security of proposed facility, and eventual disbursement. This arrangement has not only
ensured segregation of duties and accountability, but also helped in minimizing risk of compromise with quality of the credit portfolio.

To ensure sound practices in credit risk management, including taking calculated risk and maintaining asset portfolio quality, BRAC Bank follows
well-established Credit Policy Guidelines, as approved by the Board of Directors and prepared in line with internationally-accepted risk
management principles and best practices. The guidelines are also aligned with the ‘Guidelines on Credit Risk Management (CRM) for Banks’
(March, 2016) by Bangladesh Bank, the Bank Company Act, 1991 (Amended in 2013), Risk Management Guidelines for Banks (October, 2018)
and credit-related circulars and instructions of Bangladesh Bank circulated from time to time. In 2022, BRAC Bank has updated its credit policy
in line with with the instructions issued by Bangladesh Bank for the loan accounts at the time of sanctioning or renewal, where applicable.

In 2022, BRAC Bank has complied with the instructions given by Bangladesh Bank vide BRPD Circular letter no 04 dated 04-Jan-21 and BRPD
Circular letter no 35 dated 06-Jul-21 for the loan accounts at the time of sanctioning or renewal, where applicable.

. Foreign exchange risk management

Foreign exchange risk arises from fluctuations in currency prices, influenced by various macro and micro economic factors. Contemporary
financial institutions engage in activities starting from basic currency buy, sell, imports, exports and remittances to complex structured products.
Within the bank, the Treasury division is vested with the responsibility to measure and minimize risk associated with bank’s foreign currency
position.
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All treasury functions are clearly demarcated between treasury front office, mid office and back office which has separate and independent
reporting lines to ensure segregation of duties and accountability and also helps minimize the risk of compromise. The front office is involved
only in dealing activities, mid office is involved in monitoring of different limits, e.g. counterparty limits, dealers' trading limits, stop/loss limits,
etc. and calculation of Value at Risk (VaR) and reports directly to the Chief Risk/Operating Officer of the bank. Treasury back office is responsible
for all related processing functions with separate reporting line to the Head of Operations.

Dealing room is well-equipped with Reuter’s dealing system, a number of FX trading platforms and voice loggers, etc. State-of-the-art treasury
system is in place to ensure straight through processing (STP) of all deals. Dealing room also offers an FX trading platform ‘BBL Electra’ to
counterparty banks where all deals are auto-hedged and processed through STP without creating any position for the dealing room. The robust
treasury system of the Bank also facilitates the mid office in effective monitoring and risk reporting and the back office with different reports,
along with easy processing of transactions. Counterparty limit is set by the Credit Committee and monitored by the mid office. Clearly expressed
dealers’ trading limits, stop-loss limits and currency-wise open position limits are in place that are monitored by the mid office. All Treasury
including FX transactions are carried out by well-trained and dynamic dealers who ensure local and global regulatory compliance.

D. Asset liability management
Changes in market liquidity and or interest rate exposes the bank’s business to the risk of loss, which may, in extreme cases, threaten the
survival of the institution. Thus, it is essential that the level of balance sheet risks are effectively managed, appropriate policies and procedures
are established to control and limit these risks and proper resources are made available for evaluating and controlling these risks. The Asset
Liability Management Committee (ALCO) of the bank monitors liquidity and market risks of the bank and plans balance sheet & pricing strategy
accordingly. Bank has dedicated ALM desk under Treasury and Fl division, to support ALCO in decision making.

ALCO also reviews the country's overall economic position, the bank’s liquidity position, ALM ratios, interest rate risks, capital adequacy,
deposit/advances growth, cost of deposit and yield on advances, FX gap, market interest rates, loan loss provision adequacy and deposit and
lending pricing strategy.

E. Operational Risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss resulting a wide variety of causes associated with the Bank’s processes, people, technology or
infrastructure, or from external factors. Operational risk is inherent in the Bank's activities and as with other risk types is managed through an
overall framework with checks and balances that include implementation of three line of defence, recognised ownership of the risk by the
businesses and independent risk management oversight.

The operational risk policy codifies the core governing principles for operational risk management and provides a framework for operational risk.
In accordance with the policy, each business area is responsible to identify its key operational risks as well as the controls established to
mitigate those risks and to ensure compliance with laws, regulations, regulatory administrative actions and the Bank's policies.

The Bank's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and damage to the reputation of the Bank's
reputation with overall cost effectiveness and innovation. In all cases, the Bank’s policy requires compliance with all applicable legal and
regulatory requirements.

F. Equity Risk

Equity risk arises from movement in market value of equities held. The risks are monitored by Bank's Treasury and Fis Division under a well
designed policy framework.

G. Prevention of Money Laundering (ML), Terrorist Financing (TF) and Proliferation Financing (PF)
The Bank as the legal framework of the “Money Laundering Prevention Act, 2012 (amended in 2015)" and Anti Terrorism Act, 2009 (amended in
2013), has been pursuing the policy of closed-fisted compliance with all directives and circulars issued by regulatory body to ensure the culture
of good governance in all aspects of its banking services and operations. The BRAC Bank has implemented additional processes and procedures
covering areas of CDD/KYC, review of high-risk accounts, Trade CDD and risk grading of customers, PEP/IP, Ultimate Beneficial Owner guideline,
name screening (that includes sanctions and adverse media) are under monitoring and revision to ensure policies of the Bank remains up-to-
date.

New transaction monitoring reports that has been introduced with a risk-based approach resulted in the detection and reporting of suspicious
activities/transactions (SAR/STR). Further discipline was brought in improving the quality of the quarterly meeting and self-assessment reports
by branches through training and guidance notes to assess themselves. As the key objectives of the Bank are to ensure the implementation of
policies and procedures in line with BFIU Guidelines, improve employee awareness and commitment, integrate higher engagement and focus of
Senior Management within Bank's control measures to improve overall AML-CFT Governance and better mitigate the money laundering &
terrorist financing risk, thereby thriving to increase AML/CFT rating through a continuous process.

H. Internal Control and Compliance (ICC)
The bank has instituted internal control mechanism to provide reasonable assurance regarding the attainment of objectives in the effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, the reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws, regulations and internal policies. Through
internal control systems, the bank identifies weaknesses associated with the process and adopts appropriate measures to overcome these
deficiencies.

The main objectives of internal control are as follows:

a) Operations objectives: Attainment of the bank’s mission and vision.

b) Reporting objectives: Timely, accurate and comprehensive reporting - financial and non-financial, internal and external.

¢) Compliance objectives: Conducting activities and taking specific actions in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.
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The bank has established an effective internal control system whose primary aim is to ensure the overall management of risks and also provide
reasonable assurance that the objectives set by the bank will be met. It has been designed to develop a high level of risk culture among our
people, establish efficient and effective operating standards, ensure reliability of internal and external information, including accounting and
financial information, secure the bank’s operations and assets, and comply with laws, regulatory requirements and internal policies.

The key functions that have been established in reviewing adequacy and integrity of the system of internal controls are as follows:
a) Various committees are established by the Board to assist it in ensuring the effectiveness of the bank’s daily operations are in accordance
with the corporate objectives, strategies and the annual budget, as well as approved policies and business directions.

b) The Internal Audit Department of the Bank checks for compliance with policies and procedures and the effectiveness of the internal control
systems on an ongoing basis using samples and rotational procedures and highlights significant findings in respect of any non-compliance.

¢) Audits are carried out on various departments/units, SME Service Centres and all branches in accordance with the annual audit plan,
approved by the Audit Committee of the Board. Findings of the internal audit are submitted to the Audit Committee of the Board for review
at their periodic meetings.

d) The Audit Committee of the Board of the bank reviews internal control issues identified by the Internal Audit Department, Bangladesh Bank,
External Auditors and the management, and evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems. The minutes of the Audit Committee meetings of the Board are tabled at the meetings of the Board of Directors of the bank on a
periodic basis.

e) Self-assessment of anti-fraud internal controls is carried out on a semi-annual basis and is sent to Bangladesh Bank, as per requirements of
DOS Circular Letter No. 10, dated 09 May 2017, issued by Bangladesh Bank.

f) In assessing the internal control system, identified officers of the bank continued to review and update all procedures and controls that are
connected with significant accounts and disclosures of the financial statements of the bank.

. Information and communication technology (ICT) security

BRAC Bank is dedicated to provide high-quality service and banking security. The bank has an ICT security strategy for cyber security and ICT risk
mitigation, in accordance with the Bangladesh Bank ICT guidelines stated in BRPD circular no. 14 dated 23 October 2005 regarding “Guideline
on Information and Communication Technology for Scheduled Banks", BRPD circular no. 21 dated 20 May 2010 and BRPD circular no. 09 dated
17 September 2015 and well-established frameworks and international standards and controls, such as COBIT, ITIL, ISO 27001, ISO 18788,
NIST, GDPR, PCl, and SANS.

Bank has implemented multiple robust security solutions to prevent any unwanted/unauthorized/ unauthorized malware attack as well as a zero-
day attack based on static behavior, to detect and prevent data leakage, unauthorized use and transmission of sensitive information, and to
reduce insider threats by detecting the inappropriate actions that can lead to malware infections or data breaches, etc. The Bank has also
implemented a thorough Data Leakage Prevention scheme to safeguard the data of its clients and the bank itself.

Comprehensive annual maintenance contracts (AMCs) and service level agreements (SLAs) were established with partners of major data
center equipment manufacturers to guarantee 24x7 servicing for all active data center and disaster recovery site equipment. With the upgrade
to the monitoring system of the data center and disaster recovery site, the bank is now able to proactively monitor all system parameters and
take appropriate preventative action. Additionally, BRAC Bank has implemented the ITIL framework of best practice recommendations to ensure
complete IT service management.

The BRAC bank believes integrated cyber protection and digital transformation to be essential. As a digitally oriented bank, BRAC Bank has built
a comprehensive cyber security roadmap and is aiming to equip itself with the finest personnel, security solutions, processes, and procedures.
BRAC Bank utilizes premier worldwide external organizations to undertake assessments and regularly assesses its cyber security posture and
future readiness.

. Implementation of BASEL- Il

To cope up with the international best practices and to make the bank's capital shock absorbent ‘Guidelines on Risk Based Capital Adequacy
(RBCA) for banks was introduced by Bangladesh Bank as per BASEL IIl. BASEL Il framework has three main components referred to as pillars:

i.  Pillar | addresses minimum capital requirement;

ii.  Pillar Il elaborates the process for assessing the overall capital adequacy aligned with risk profile of a bank as well as capital growth plan;
and

iii.  Finally, Pillar Il gives a framework of public disclosure on the position of a bank's risk profiles, capital adequacy, and risk management
system.

BRAC Bank has fully complied with all the directives provided by the Central bank from time to time, starting from Pillar |, Il and Ill reporting
requirements to periodic Stress Testing activity etc. Formation of BASEL Steering Committee chaired by the Managing Director of the bank helps
us to ensure supreme governance and strict regimentation at execution level. As yet, BRAC bank has been able to successfully implement the
phase in transition arrangement for Basel lll, which started from the year 2015 and ended in 2020.

As per RBCA Guideline, all scheduled banks are required to calculate Capital to Risk Weighted Asset Ratio (CRAR) based on ‘Solo’ basis as well
as on ‘Consolidated’ basis. The calculation of CRAR under Basel lll has been made as per “Guidelines on Risk Based Capital Adequacy as issued
by Bangladesh Bank vide BRPD Circular no. 18 dated December 21, 2014 and subsequent related circulars of Bangladesh Bank.
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3.9

3.10

3.1

Country risk refers to the possibility that a foreign obligator may be incapable or unwilling to fulfill his obligations due to country specific
economic, political, social ecological conditions. This may include the consequences of exchange control, currency devaluation, official
government actions or any significant socio-political changes in the country where placements, lending and investments made. Major categories
of country risk comprises of sovereign risk, contagion risk, currency risk, indirect country risk, macroeconomic risk and transfer risk.

BRAC Bank Limited manages and monitor its country risk exposure in accordance with the guidelines issued by Bangladesh Bank in its BRPD
circular number 07 circulated on April 13, 2021. In compliance with this regulatory guideline, bank has assessed its position and found banks’
net funded exposure to a single country is below 2% of its total asset. Hence there is no additional provision/capital requirement for exposure to
any single country.

Disclosure on credit rating information

In compliance with Bangladesh Bank’s BRPD circular No. 06, dated July 05, 2006, and with a view to assure investors and other stakeholders of
the sustainable operating positions of the bank, while also safeguarding stakeholder interests, BRAC Bank is subject to ratings assessment by
reputed credit rating agencies. The summary of Bank's credit rating as of 31 December 2022 is presented below:

Rating agency Long-term rating Short-term rating Outlook Valid up to
Credit Rating Agency of Bangladesh (CRAB) AAA ST-1 Stable 30 June 2023
Credit Rating Information and Services Ltd (CRISL) AA+ ST-1 Stable 02 July 2023
Emerging Credit Rating Ltd (ECRL) AA+ ST-1 Stable 30 June 2023
S&P global Ratings B+ B Stable November, 2022
Moody's Ba3 NP Stable September, 2022

Director’s and management's responsibilities on statement
The Board of Directors and managements take responsibility for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements.

Approval of the financial statements
The financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on 11 April 2023.

General

a) Figures appearing in the financial statements have been rounded-off to the nearest Taka.

b)  Figures of previous year have been rearranged, wherever considered necessary, to conform with the current year's presentation.

¢) The expenses, irrespective of capital or revenue in nature, accrued/due but not paid have been provided for in the books of accounts.
d) The expenses include VAT charges on respective services or goods received.
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BRAC Bank Limited
Off-shore Banking Units

Financial Statements
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022




Annexure - H

Off-shore Banking Units
Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2022
2022 I 2021
Particulars Note
: UsD | Taka I USD I Taka
PROPERTY AND ASSETS
Cash - - - -
Cash in hand
(Including foreign currency) - - -
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent
bank(s) - - - -
(Including foreign currency)
Balance with other banks and financial
institutions 3 23,060,934 2,382,125,360 69,634,716 5,974,658,656
Inside Bangladesh - - - -
Outside Bangladesh 23,060,934 2,382,125,360 69,634,716 5,974,658,656
Money at call on short notice - - - -
Investments - - - -
Government - - - -
Others - - - -
Loans and advances 4 478,265,314 49,403,372,046 402,592,989 34,542,478,506
Loans, cash credit, overdrafts etc. 457,081,025 47,215,098,555 375,658,784 32,231,523,671
Small and medium enterprises 1,312,019 135,527,658 1,712,685 146,948,408
Bills purchased and discounted 19,872,270 2,052,745,833 25,221,520 2,164,006,427
Fixed assets including premises, furniture and
fixtures - - - -
Other assets 5 9,795,692 1,005,074,422 9,272,615 795,603,813
Total Property and Assets 511,121,940 52,790,571,828 481,500,320 41,312,740,975
LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
Liabilities
Borrowings from other banks, financial
institutions and agents 6 447,328,736 46,207,716,494 422,378,794 36,240,100,482
Money at call and short notice - - - -
Deposits and other accounts 7 21,650,219 2,236,402,572 9,716,023 833,634,780
Current accounts and other accounts 626,567 64,722,483 809,354 69,442,595
Bills payable - - - -
Savings deposits - - - -
Fixed deposits 20,300,041 2,096,933,295 8,633,540 740,757,724
Other deposits 723,611 74,746,794 273,129 23,434,461
Other liabilities 8 48,012,922 4,214,678,041 54,361,285 4,496,927,343
Total Liabilities 516,991,877 52,658,797,107 486,456,102 41,570,662,605
Capital and Shareholders' Equity
Paid up share capital - - - -
Statutory reserve - - - -
Revaluation reserve - - - -
Foreign currency translation reserve - 329,930,810 - 12,610,122
Surplus in profit and loss account/Retained
earnings 9 (5,869,937) (198,156,089) (4,955,782) (270,531,752)
Total shareholders' equity (5,869,937) 131,774,721 (4,955,782) (257,921,630)
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 511,121,940 52,790,571,828 481,500,320 41,312,740,975
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Off-shore Banking Units
Balance Sheet

Continuation of Annexure - H

As at 31 December 2022

| 2022 I 2021
Particulars Note

[ UsD I | Taka I | usb | | Taka
Off balance sheet items
Contingent liabilities
Acceptances and endorsements 10,857,616 1,121,559,199 12,205,159 1,032,165,486
Letter of guarantees 1,580,960 163,308,451 - -
Irrevocable letter of credits - - 5,118,638 436,927,963
Bills for collection 14,422,755 1,489,827,345 13,693,469 1,129,567,424
Other contingent liabilities - - 176,241 -
Total 26,861,331 2,774,694,995 31,193,507 2,598,660,873
Other commitments
Swap deals with banks and customers - - - -
Spot and forward deals with banks and - - - -
customers
Total off balance sheet items 26,861,331 2,774,694,995 31,193,507 2,598,660,873
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Off-shore Banking Units
Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Continuation of Annexure - H

| 2022 I 2021
Particulars Note

[ UsD || Taka Il USsD || Taka
Interest income 10 21,862,980 2,087,787,637 10,637,272 905,068,309
Interest paid on deposits and borrowing etc. 11 15,802,206 1,514,202,169 6,883,601 576,258,553
Net interest income 6,060,774 573,585,468 3,753,671 328,809,756
Investment income - - - -
Commission, exchange and brokerage 12 602,932 55,988,752 508,614 43,131,460
Other operating income 13 391,005 36,401,181 529,967 45,018,624
Total operating income 7,054,711 665,975,401 4,792,252 416,959,840
Salaries and allowances 1,088,154 102,230,848 830,182 70,720,500
Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity etc. 14 89,169 8,355,139 78,498 13,874,663
Legal expenses 52 4,996 - -
Postage, stamps, telecommunication etc. 15 4,932 459,035 4,024 342,605
Stationery, printing, advertisement etc. 16 9,218 871,479 4,466 381,255
Depreciation and repairs to bank's assets 119,857 11,275,665 103,166 8,785,868
Other expenses 677,532 63,737,066 202,099 17,215,042
Total operating expenses 1,988,914 186,934,228 1,222,435 111,319,933
Profit before provisions 5,065,797 479,041,173 3,669,817 305,639,907
Provision for:
Loans and advances 17 4,787,320 406,665,510 10,976,329 938,079,064
Off balance sheet items - - - -
Others - - - -
Total provision 4,787,320 406,665,510 10,976,329 938,079,064
Profit/(loss) before taxes 278,477 72,375,663 (7,406,512) (632,439,157)
Provision for tax:
Current tax expense - - - -
Deferred tax expense/ (income) - - - -
Total provision for tax 18 - - - -
Total profit/(loss) after taxes 278,477.00 72,375,663 (7,406,512) (632,439,157)
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Off-shore Banking Units
Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Continuation of Annexure - H

[ 2022 1 2021
Particulars
| USD I Taka Il UsD I Taka

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest receipts in cash 15,581,532 1,394,352,068 9,543,342 809,552,379
Interest payment (12,722,680) (1,171,094,674) (6,790,073) (566,899,959)
Fees and commissions receipts 602,932 55,988,753 508,613 43,131,459
Cash payments to employees (1,088,154) (102,230,848) (830,183) (70,720,500)
Cash payments to suppliers (14,150) (1,330,513) (8,489) (723,860)
Receipts from other operating activities 391,005 36,401,181 530,005 45,021,853
Payment for other operating activities : (418,015) (43,711,111) (346,800) (36,747,012)
0] ti h fl fi h i ti

parating casd fiew bsture. ghangce: I -apercting 2,332,470 168,374,856 2,606,415 222,614,360
assets and liabilities (i)
Increase/decrease in operating assets and
liabilities
Loans and advances to customers (75,672,323) (14,860,893,539) (157,942,112) (13,795,814,994)
Other assets (6,933,789) 483,784,961 67,943 (577,465)
Deposits from other banks/borrowings 24,949,943 9,967,616,012 154,703,199 13,540,915,651
Deposits from customers 11,934,195 1,402,767,792 146,412 22,121,222
Other liabilities (3,184,278) (796,591,722) 2,730,913 201,113,661
Cash utilised in operating assets and liabilities (ii) (48,906,252) (3,803,316,496) (293,645) (32,241,925)
Net cash (used)/flows from operating activities
(+1i) ( 4 2 g (46,573,782) (3,634,941,640) 2,312,770 190,372,435
Cash flows from investing activities
Investment in commercial paper [ - ]| - ]| - | -
Net cash used in investing activities - - - -
Cash flows from financing activities - - - -
Net increase/(decrease) In cash (A+B+C) (46,573,782) (3,634,941,640) 2,312,770 190,372,435
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 69,634,716 5,974,658,656 67,321,946 5,708,975,151
Exchange difference - 42,408,344 - 75,311,070
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year (D+E) 23,060,934 2,382,125,360 69,634,716 5,974,658,656
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year:
Cash in hand (including foreign currency) - - - -
Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agents ) A . }
bank(s) (including foreign currency)
Balance with other banks and financial institutions 23,060,934 2,382,125,360 69,634,716 5,974,658,656

23,060,934 2,382,125,360 69,634,716 5,974,658,656
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2.4

2.5

2.6

Continuation of Annexure - H
Off-Shore Banking Units
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022

Status of the units

Off-shore Banking Units of BRAC Bank Limited, governed under the rules and guidelines of Bangladesh Bank. The bank commenced the
operation of its Off-shore banking Unit from 2010 after obtaining necessary approval from Bangladesh Bank.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the units are to provide all kinds of commercial banking services to its customers through its off-shore Banking
units in Bangladesh.

Summary of significant accounting policies and basis of preparation
A summary of the principle accounting policies which have been applied consistently (unless otherwise stated), are set out below:

a) Basis of accounting
The off-shore Banking Units maintain its accounting records in USD from which accounts are prepared according to the Bank Companies
Act 1991, International Financial Reporting Standards and other applicable directives issued by Bangladesh Bank.

b) Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision of accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

¢) Foreign currency transactions and translations to presentation currency
Foreign currency transactions are converted into equivalent functional currency i.e. USD using the exchange rates ruling on the dates of
respective transactions as per IAS -21" The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates". )

All revenue items have been translated to presentation currency i.e. BDT at average rate and all balance sheet items except retained
earnings were translated to presentation currency at the closing rate. Any resulting differences have been recognised as foreign currency

Commitments for outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts disclosed in the financials are translated at contracted rates. Contingent
liabilities/ commitments for letter of credit and letter of guarantee denominated in foreign currencies are expressed in Taka terms at the
rates of exchange ruling on the balance date.

Reporting period
These financial statements cover one calendar year from 1 January to 31 December 2022,

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and cash at bank, highly
liquid interest bearing investment/securities with original maturities of less than three month.

As per IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, cash flow statement can be prepared either in direct method or in indirect method. The presentation
is selected to present these cash flows in a manner that is most appropriate for the business or industry . The method selected is applied
consistently. As per BRPD 14 dated 25 June 2003, cash flow statement should be a mixture of direct and indirect method.

Loans and advances

a) Loans and advances of Off-shore Banking Units are stated in the balance sheet on gross basis.

b) Interest is calculated on a daily product basis but charged and accounted for on accrual basis. Interest is not charged on bad and loss
loans as per guidelines of Bangladesh Bank. Records of such interest amounts are kept in separate memorandum accounts.

Provision for liabilities

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the unit has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligations, in accordance with the IAS 37 " Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets".

General
a) Figures appearing in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest Taka and rearranged wherever necessary.
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Continuation of Annexure - H

) [ 2022 [[ 2021 |
Particulars
[ usb I Taka |[ usD [ Taka |
Balance with other banks and financial institutions
JP Morgan Chase Bank, New York 6,799,986 702,418,166 1,612,754 138,374,289
JP Morgan AG, Frankfurt, Germany 247,489 25,564,908 4,957 425,313
JP Morgan Chase, N.A., London 13,459 1,390,286 17,005 1,459,054
BBL OBU to Other Bank OBU placement 16,000,000 1,652,752,000 68,000,000 5,834,400,000
23,060,934 2,382,125,360 69,634,716 5,974,658,656
Loans and advances
Loans, cash credits, overdrafts etc. (note 4.1) 457,081,025 47,215,098,555 375,658,784 32,231,523,671
Small and medium enterprises 1,312,019 135,527,658 1,712,685 146,948,408
Bills purchased and discounted (note 4.2) 19,872,270 2,052,745,833 25,221,520 2,164,006,427
478,265,314 49,403,372,046 402,592,989 34,542,478,506
Overdrafts 2,259,757 233,426,083 5,150,889 441,946,251
Demand loans 409,950,673 42,346,674,651 326,653,467 28,026,867,478
Term loans 44,870,595 4,634,997,821 43,854,428 3,762,709,942
457,081,025 47,215,098,555 375,658,784 32,231,523,671
] [ 2022 [ 2021 |
Particulars
[ UsD [ Taka || USD || Taka |
Bills purchased and discounted 19,872,270 2,052,745,833 25,221,520 2,164,006,427
Bills purchased and discounted SME - - - -
19,872,270 2,052,745,833 25,221,520 2,164,006,427
Other assets
Interest receivables 9,207,982 944,365,760 2,926,535 250,930,191
Deferred revenue expenditure 587,710 60,708,662 200,313 17,186,834
Receivables against collateral margin-swap - - - 180,000
Receivable settlement account-OBU/DBU - - 6,145,767 527,306,788
9,795,692 1,005,074,422 9,272,615 795,603,813
Borrowings from other banks, financial
institutions and agents
Inside Bangladesh:
Woori Bank, Dhaka - - 5,000,000 429,000,000
On Shore to BBL Off Shore 72,822,436 7,522,339,223 141,090,169 12,105,536,457
72,822,436 7,522,339,223 146,090,169 12,534,536,457
Outside Bangladesh:
State Bank of India, Hong Kong 24,000,000 2,479,128,000 = =
Nabil Bank Limited, Nepal 6,186,300 639,026,231 3,500,000 300,300,000
HDFC Bank Limited, India 15,000,000 1,549,455,000 10,000,000 858,000,000
Standard Chartered Bank, Singapore 5,000,000 516,485,000 27,600,000 2,368,080,000
DBS Bank Singapore - - 28,000,000 2,402,400,000
Asian Development Bank 30,000,000 3,098,910,000 30,000,000 2,574,000,000
Axis Bank Limited - - 20,000,000 1,716,000,000
Caixabank S.A. 67,000,000 6,920,899,000 30,000,000 2,574,000,000
Siddhartha Bank Limited, Kathmandu - - 10,000,000 858,000,000
The National Bank of Ras Al-Khaimah, UAE 50,000,000 5,164,850,000 17,148,000 1,471,298,400
Abu Dhabi Commercial Bank, UAE 15,000,000 1,549,455,000 55,000,000 4,719,000,000
First Abu Dhabi Bank PJSC, UAE - - 10,000,000 858,000,000
CDC Group Plc, United Kingdom 8,580,000 886,288,260 6,540,625 561,185,625
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Continuation of Annexure - H

International Finance Corporation (IFC), USA 30,000,000 3,098,910,000 15,000,000 1,287,000,000
JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A. Singapore 49,000,000 5,061,553,000 3,500,000 300,300,000
Bank Muscat Saog 17,000,000 1,756,049,000 10,000,000 858,000,000
Cargill Financial Services International 30,000,000 3,098,910,000
Commercial Bank Of Qatar 10,000,000 1,032,970,000
Mizuho Bank Ltd, Singapore 10,000,000 1,032,970,000 - -
Yes Bank, India 7,740,000 799,518,780 = -
374,506,300 38,685,377,271 276,288,625 23,705,564,025
447,328,736 46,207,716,494 422,378,794 36,240,100,482
Deposit and other accounts
Local currency:
Current and other accounts - - - -
Bills payable - - - -
Saving deposits - - - -
Fixed deposits - - - -
Other deposits - - - -
Foreign currency:
Current and other accounts 626,567 64,722,483 809,354 69,442,595
Bills payable - - - -
Saving deposits - - - -
Fixed deposits 20,300,041 2,096,933,295 8,633,540 740,757,724
Other deposits 723,611 74,746,794 273,129 23,434,461
21,650,219 2,236,402,572 9,716,023 833,634,780
Total Deposit and other accounts 21,650,219 2,236,402,572 9,716,023 833,634,780
Other liabilities
Provisions for loans and advances 16,631,233 1,717,956,454 24,297,996 1,958,679,094
Special provision COVID-19 361,561 37,348,170 435,293 37,348,170
Provision on interest receivable 91,394 9,440,739 21,488 1,843,706
Interest suspense 1,028,776 106,269,450 1,918,811 164,633,977
Provision for taxation net off AIT 654,488 67,606,624 787,956 67,606,624
Interest payable on borrowings 4,068,022 420,214,461 1,275,007 109,395,602
Accrued expenses 419,620 35,607,707 (48,975) (4,054,049)
Suppliers payable (680) (70,212) (231,137) (19,901,732)
Payable to on-shore 23,280,472 1,709,927,600 27,431,048 2,105,368,327
Payable against SWIFT charge 9,048 934,644
Others payable 1,468,988 109,442,404 (1,526,202) 76,007,624
48,012,922 4,214,678,041 54,361,285 4,496,927,343
[ 2022 Il 2021
Particulars
[ uUsb || Taka [ USD | Taka
Surplus in profit and loss account/ retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year (4,955,782) (270,531,752) 2,450,290 235,781,082
Adjustment to retained earnings (1,192,632) - 440 126,126,323
Add: Retained surplus for the year 278,477 72,375,663 (7,406,512) (632,439,157)
(5,869,937) (198,156,089) (4,955,782) (270,531,752)
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Interest income

Interest on loans and advances

Interest on money at call and short notice
Interest on Funding SWAP

Other interest income

Interest paid on deposits and borrowing etc.

Interest on deposits

Interest on borrowing from banks & Fls
Interest on funding SWAP

Interest on money at call and short notice

Commission, exchange and brokerage

Commission from letters of credit-foreign
Import and export related fees
Other fees

Other operating income

Miscellaneous income

Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity etc.

Rent, rates and taxes
Insurance

Power and electricity

WASA and sewerage

Postage, stamp, telecommunication etc.

Postage and courier
Court fees & stamps
Telephone- Office

Stationery, printing, advertisement etc.

Stationery and printing
Security stationery
Advertisement

Provisions for loans and advances

For classified loans and advances
For unclassified loans and advances
Provision for interest receivable

Provision for tax

Continuation of Annexure - H

21,824,509 2,084,233,475 10,634,503 904,832,171
38,471 3,554,162 2,769 236,138
21,862,980 2,087,787,637 10,637,272 905,068,309
490,650 46,309,807 240,178 13,228,827
15,298,529 1,466,632,860 32,869 559,529,636
- - 6,602,017 721,430
13,027 1,259,502 8,637 2,778,660
15,802,206 1,514,202,169 6,883,601 576,258,553
151,603 14,154,755 140,757 11,934,049
451,439 41,845,080 367,868 31,198,363
(110) (11,083) (11) (952)
602,932 55,988,752 508,614 43,131,460
391,005 36,401,181 529,967 45,018,624
391,005 36,401,181 529,967 45,018,624
78,667 7,369,485 68,008 5,792,896
1,731 163,568 1,543 7,319,806
8,002 749,423 8,029 683,964
769 72,663 918 77,997
89,169 8,355,139 78,498 13,874,663
977 88,099 661 56,171
789 74,829 255 21,737
3,166 296,107 3,108 264,697
4,932 459,035 4,024 342,605
3,368 318,286 1,473 125,394
2,383 221,764 1,309 111,589
3,467 331,429 1,684 144,272
9,218 871,479 4,466 381,255
1,830,399 178,850,259 9,487,900 810,646,253
2,883,633 220,308,571 1,488,429 127,432,811
73,288 7,506,680 = =
4,787,320 406,665,510 10,976,329 938,079,064

Offshore Banking Unit (OBU) is an integral business unit of the Bank. The income from OBU is included in the separate financial statement
of the Bank and tax has been provided on total income of the Bank including income from OBU. Hence provision for tax has not been

calculated for OBU portion separately.
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Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co

Chartered Accountants

| To whom it may concern

This is to certify that as detailed in the Annexure-I, BRAC Bank Limited made the custodian transactions on
account of custodian services provided during the year ended 31 December 2022, which have been verified with
the books of account, invoices and other related documents as produced to us for our verification.

We also certify that management of the Bank prepared and fairly presented of the income and expenses in
accordance with the requirement of the Securities and Exchange Commission (Securities Custodian Service)
Rules 2003, and made necessary disclosures in the Bank’s audited financial statements for the year ended 31

December 2022.
Sabbir Ahmed FCA, Partner
Enrolment No: 770
Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Dhaka, 11 April 2023 Chartered Accountants

National Office : BTMC Bhaban (6t & 71" Floor), 7-9 Karwan Bazar Commercial Area, Dhaka- 1215, Bangladesh
Chattogram Office : Delwar Bhaban (4th Floor), 104 Agrabad Commercial Area, Chattogram-4100, Bangladesh



BRAC Bank Limited
Custodian Service
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Annexure - |

Particulars . 2021

Taka Taka
Operating income
Commission, exchange and brokerage 21,789,916 20,405,215
Total operating income 21,789,916 20,405,215
Operating expenses
Salaries and allowances 2,780,388 2,805,181
Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity etc. 960,135 963,510
Postage, stamps, telecommunication etc. 149,391 121,790
Stationery, printing, advertisement etc. 924 909,363
Depreciation on and repairs to bank's assets 258,547 1,220,677
Other expenses " 148,164 9,800,386
Total operating expenses 4,297,549 15,820,907
Operating profit 17,492,367 4,584,308
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